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                                   BREAKING THE SILENCE. 

                                             PART THREE. 

 

                                             

 

                                          INTRODUCTION 

 

My name is Eileen Chubb; I am the founder and Director of the Charity 

Compassion in Care. I am also a former Bupa care worker and Whistle-

blower ( Bupa 7 ) 

My work brings me into daily contact with both relatives and Whistle-

blowers ( Staff ) who are concerned about the treatment of elderly 

vulnerable people in care. 

 

I have always approached the investigation of care homes fairly, choosing 

to include a number of random homes alongside those homes where I have 

been informed of concerns. 

 

Part of my work involves visiting care homes. In my efforts to be fair and 

not be accused of picking on their homes I realise I have given Bupa too 

much leeway. I have given them an advantage I would never give any other 

bad care provider.  However it has become increasingly apparent that there 

are serious problems in Bupa homes with a disproportionately high 

number of concerns being reported compared to companies of a similar 

size. 

 

As a former Bupa care worker who reported widespread abuse of 

vulnerable elderly people which was fully upheld by the regulator (See 

appendix for the inquiry report) my experience of Bupa is of a company 

that fails to learn from mistakes, where an ingrained culture of denial has 

led to abuse continuing unchecked. Such a culture in any company would 

be of concern but when it is a company that has responsibility for the care 

of the most vulnerable, it is a culture that can only result in suffering. 

 

                   About the homes used in this report. 

 

The homes are taken from the following sources, 

    Tales of The Un-Inspected  ( See www.compassionincare.com ) 

    Media reports. 

    Freedom of Information requests. 

    Individual testimony. 

http://www.compassionincare.com/
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    Health and Safety prosecutions and compliance notices. 

    The Nursing and Midwifery Council ( NMC ) 

    Coroners Inquests 

I have only used a couple of examples where the CQC have raised 

concerns. The reason for this is that in nearly all the homes where abuse 

and neglect occurred, the homes were judged to be compliant at the time 

the events took place. For this reason I have little faith in CQC inspections. 

 

 

Apart from the homes used in this report I have more than 50 other Bupa 

homes where concerns have been raised with Compassion in Care but 

which I have not included as the information is confidential. 

 

In total 115 of Bupas 290 homes have had serious and avoidable failures. 

   

It should be noted that most abuse never makes the news, most of the 

available information about bad homes is kept from the public and not 

published in CQC inspection reports. It is only by obtaining such 

information as safeguarding alerts or death rates that the true scale of 

suffering is exposed. However there is one action that can prevent that 

suffering, protect whistle-blowers and break the silence that allows all 

abuse to take place. 

 

In 1999 I blew the Whistle on the horrific abuse I witnessed in Bupas Isard 

House, 15 years later I am still trying to protect the people in their homes. 

Both residents and the brave Whistle-blowers. How many more vulnerable 

people have to suffer before action is taken? 

 

 

Currently Whistle-blowers risk all to report concerns. It very often results 

in the whistle-blower being the one with no job or hope whilst the abusers 

go on to thrive, are often promoted and some even receive OBEs. 

  

The Public Interest Disclosure Act has failed to protect Whistle-blowers 

and those they tried so hard to protect. I believe the only way forward is to 

scrap PIDA and create a new law that would protect the protectors, hold 

bad companies and their Directors to account and send out the message 

that it is safe to speak out. 

I would call this new law Ednas Law. 

 

Eileen Chubb 
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                                                      EDNA        

 

                                  
 

               

This report is dedicated to all the victims at Isard House, but especially to 

Edna who had no family to speak for her, the first to suffer because of 

PIDAôs failure. 

It is also dedicated to Agnus Nisbit of Pentland Hill, the last home in this 

report sadly not the last victim of a company that is seemingly beyond the 

law. 

 

 

                     

                                                     AGNUS                                                                                                                              
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                                           BUPA HOME 1. 

 

                                 ISARD HOUSE BROMLEY 

 

April 1999 The Bupa7 whistle-blowers report widespread abuse at Isard 

House. Which is investigated and upheld by the regulator. 

 
 

4(% +%.4)3( 4)-%3Ȣ φυȾϊȾτφ 
.¦t! /IL9C{ w¦..L{I !.¦{9 ![[9D!¢Lhb{Φ 

Lƴ !ǇǊƛƭ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ŜȄǘŜƴŘŜŘ .¦t!Ωǎ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘ ǘƻ Ǌǳƴ ǎƛȄ ƘƻƳŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 

ōƻǊƻǳƎƘ ŦƻǊ ǘǿƻ ȅŜŀǊǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 5!±L5 wh.9w¢{Σ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅΩǎ 

!ǎǎƛǎǘŀƴǘ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ ŦƻǊ ƻƭŘŜǊ ǇŜƻǇƭŜΣ ƘŜ ǎŀƛŘ άLŦ .¦t! ƘŀŘ ƴƻǘ ōŜŜƴ ǳǇ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ Ƨƻō 

ƛǘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ŘŜŀƭǘ ǿƛǘƘ ŜƛƎƘǘŜŜƴ ƳƻƴǘƘǎ ŀƎƻ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƛƎŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǿŜ 

ƘŀǾŜ ǘƛƎƘǘŜƴŜŘ ǳǇ ǘƘŜ ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ŀǘ LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜ ŀƴŘ ƛǘ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ǿƻǊƪƛƴƎΦ 

 

 

twL±!¢9 9¸9Σ оκуκлпΦ 

 .ȅ IŜŀǘƘŜǊ aƛƭƭǎΦ 

.¦t! Ŧƛƴŀƭƭȅ ǎŜŜƳǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ƎŜǘǘƛƴƎ ǘƻ ƎǊƛǇǎ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǎŜǊƛƻǳǎ ǇǊƻōƭŜƳǎ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƴƎ ǘƻ 

ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊŜ ƻŦ ƻƭŘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŀǾŜ ŘƻƎƎŜŘ LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜ ŎŀǊŜ ƘƻƳŜ ƛƴ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅ ŦƻǊ 

ǘƘŜ ƭŀǎǘ ŦƛǾŜ ȅŜŀǊǎΦ {ƛƴŎŜ ǘƘŜ ŜȅŜ ƭŀǎǘ ŀǇǇŜŀǊŜŘ ƳƻǊŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ ƘŀǾŜ 

ōŜŜƴ ǎŀŎƪŜŘ ƻǊ ǎǳǎǇŜƴŘŜŘ ŀƳƛŘ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ƳƛǎǘǊŜŀǘƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ƴŜƎƭŜŎǘΣ 

ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŀǊǊƛǾŀƭ ƻŦ ŀ Ƙƛǘ ǎǉǳŀŘ ŦǊƻƳ .¦t!Σ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƛƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǊŜ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳƛƴƎ 

ŀƴŘ ƳƻǊŜ ŘƛǎŎƛǇƭƛƴŀǊȅ ŀŎǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ŜȄǇŜŎǘŜŘΦ hƴŜ ǎŀŎƪŜŘ ŎŀǊŜ ǿƻǊƪŜǊ ƛǎ ǳƴŘŜǊǎǘƻƻŘ 

ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǿƘƻƳ .¦t! ǊŜƭƛŜŘ ƻƴ ŦƛǾŜ ȅŜŀǊǎ ŀƎƻ ǘƻ ŘŜŦŜƴŘ ƛǘǎŜƭŦ 

ŀƎŀƛƴǎǘ ŎƭŀƛƳǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǎŜǾŜƴ ǿƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎ ƻŦ ǎŜǊƛƻǳǎ ŀōǳǎŜ ŀƴŘ ƴŜƎƭŜŎǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 

ƘƻƳŜΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŎŀǘŜǊǎ ŦƻǊ ǳǇ ǘƻ сс ƻƭŘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƘƛƎƘ ƭŜǾŜƭǎ ƻŦ ŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎȅΣ ƛǘ 

ǿŀǎ ŀƭƭŜƎŜŘ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘǎ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ƭŜŦǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƻǿƴ ƳŜǎǎΣ ǿŜǊŜ ƘŀƴŘƭŜŘ ǊƻǳƎƘƭȅ 

ŀƴŘ ƛƴŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜƭȅ ŘǊǳƎƎŜŘΦ 

aƻǊŜ ǊŜŎŜƴǘƭȅ ǊŜǇƻǊǘǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǿ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴ ŦƻǊ {ƻŎƛŀƭ /ŀǊŜ LƴǎǇŜŎǘƛƻƴΣ 

ƘŀǾŜ ŦŀƛƭŜŘ ǘƻ ǎǇƻǘ ǘƘŜ ƛǎǎǳŜǎ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŎŜƴǘǊŜ ƻŦ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜΣ 

ōǳǘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴ Ƙŀǎ ŦƻǳƴŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ Ƙŀǎ ŎƻƴǎƛǎǘŜƴǘƭȅ ŦŀƛƭŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜŀŎƘ 

ŜǾŜƴ ǘƘŜ ƳƛƴƛƳǳƳ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ƛƴ ŎŀǊŜ ƴŜŜŘǎ ŀƴŘ ǘǊŀƛƴƛƴƎΦ Lǘ ŀƭǎƻ ŜȄǇǊŜǎǎŜŘ 

ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ƘƛƎƘ ƴǳƳōŜǊǎ ƻŦ Ŧŀƭƭǎ ŀƴŘ ŀŎŎƛŘŜƴǘǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊƛƴƎ ƘƻǎǇƛǘŀƭ 
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ǘǊŜŀǘƳŜƴǘΦ ¸ŜǎǘŜǊŘŀȅ .¦t! ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜŘ ǘƻ ƎƛǾŜ ŀƴȅ ŘŜǘŀƛƭǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǘŜǎǘ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ 

ōǳǘ ǎŀƛŘ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳƛƴƎ ǘƻ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƛƎŀǘŜ ά/ƻƴŎŜǊƴǎ ǊŀƛǎŜŘ ōȅ ǎǘŀŦŦΦέ ¢ƻ ŘŀǘŜ ŦƛǾŜ 

ŘƛǎŎƛǇƭƛƴŀǊȅ ƘŜŀǊƛƴƎǎ ŀǊŜ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǘŀƪŜ ǇƭŀŎŜΣ ƻƴŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ ƳŜƳōŜǊ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ 

ŘƛǎƳƛǎǎŜŘ ŀƴŘ ƻƴŜ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ƎƛǾŜƴ ŀ ǿǊƛǘǘŜƴ ǿŀǊƴƛƴƎΦ 9ƛƭŜŜƴ /Ƙǳōō ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 

ƻǊƛƎƛƴŀƭ ǿƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎ ǎŀƛŘ ά¢ƘŜ ǘǊƻǳōƭŜ ƛǎ ǘƘŀǘ ōȅ ŘŜƴȅƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ŦƛƎƘǘƛƴƎ ƻǳǊ 

ŎƭŀƛƳǎ ŦƛǾŜ ȅŜŀǊǎ ŀƎƻΣ .¦t! ǎŜƴǘ ǘƘŜ ǿǊƻƴƎ ƳŜǎǎŀƎŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ ŀǘ 

ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ ŀƴŘ ōŜŎŀǳǎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŀǘΣ ƴƻǘƘƛƴƎ Ƙŀǎ ŎƘŀƴƎŜŘΦέ {ƘŜ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ǊƛƎƘǘΣ 

ŀŘǾŜǊǘƛǎŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŀƭǊŜŀŘȅ ŀǇǇŜŀǊŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƭƻŎŀƭ ǇŀǇŜǊ ŦƻǊ ŀƴ ǳƴǎǇŜŎƛŦƛŜŘ 

ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǎǘŀŦŦΣ ǇƘƻƴƛƴƎ ǳǇ ǘƻ ŜƴǉǳƛǊŜ ŀōƻǳǘ ŀ Ƨƻō ŀǎ ŀ ǎŜƴƛƻǊ ŎŀǊŜ ǿƻǊƪŜǊΣ ŀƴ 

ŜȅŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜǊ ǿŀǎ ƻŦŦŜǊŜŘ ŀƴ ƛƳƳŜŘƛŀǘŜ ƛƴǘŜǊǾƛŜǿΣ ǎƘŜ ǿŀǎ ƴƻǘ ŀǎƪŜŘ ŀōƻǳǘ ŀƴȅ 

ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜΣ ǉǳŀƭƛŦƛŎŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ƻǊ ƛŦ ǎƘŜ ƘŀŘ ŀ ŎǊƛƳƛƴŀƭ ǊŜŎƻǊŘΣ ŀƭƭ 

ƳŜƴǘƛƻƴŜŘ ŀǎ ŀǊŜŀǎ ƻŦ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǎǘ ƛƴǎǇŜŎǘƛƻƴ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΦ 

 

 

Y9b¢ hb {¦b5!¸ рκфκлп 

.ȅ WŀƳƛŜ aŎDƛƴƴƛǎΦ 

{ƘŀŘƻǿ IƻƳŜ {ŜŎǊŜǘŀǊȅ 5ŀǾƛŘ 5ŀǾƛǎ Ƙŀǎ ōŀŎƪŜŘ ŀ Ŏŀƭƭ ŦǊƻƳ ŀ ƎǊƻǳǇ ƻŦ ŦƻǊƳŜǊ 

ŎŀǎŜǿƻǊƪŜǊǎ ǘƻ ōǊƛƴƎ ƛƴ ōŜǘǘŜǊ ǎŀŦŜƎǳŀǊŘǎ ŦƻǊ ²ƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎΦ 

aǊ 5ŀǾƛǎ ŜƴŎƻǳǊŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŎŀƳŜ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ .¦t! ǎŜǾŜƴ Ƙƛǘ ōŀŎƪ ŀǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŦƻǊƳŜǊ 

ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜǊǎ ŘƛǎƳƛǎǎŀƭ ƻŦ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŎƭŀƛƳǎ ƻŦ ǇŀǘƛŜƴǘ ƳƛǎǘǊŜŀǘƳŜƴǘΦ Lƴ ŀƴ ŜŀǊƭƛŜǊ ŀǊǘƛŎƭŜ 

ƛƴ ǘƘŜ YŜƴǘ ƻƴ {ǳƴŘŀȅ .¦t! ǎŀƛŘ άLǘ ŜƴŎƻǳǊŀƎŜŘ ²ƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎ ǘƻ ŎƻƳŜ 

ŦƻǊǿŀǊŘέ ōǳǘ aǊǎ /Ƙǳōō ǎŀƛŘ ά{ƘŜ ǿƻǳƭŘ ŦŜŜƭ ǎŀŦŜǊ ƛƴŦƻǊƳƛƴƎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ aŀŦƛŀέ 

ŀƴŘ ǎƘŜ ǊŜŦǳǘŜŘ .¦t!Ωǎ ŀǎǎŜǊǘƛƻƴ ǘƘŀǘ ƴƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴǎ ǊŀƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ мффф ǿŜǊŜ 

ŜǾŜǊ ǎǳōǎǘŀƴǘƛŀǘŜŘΣ ǎƘŜ ǎƘƻǿŜŘ ǘƘŜ YŜƴǘ ƻƴ {ǳƴŘŀȅ ŀ ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ ŀ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ōȅ 

.ǊƻƳƭŜȅ {ƻŎƛŀƭ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǳǇƘŜƭŘ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀōƻǳǘ ǇŀǘƛŜƴǘ ŎŀǊŜ ŀǘ LǎŀǊŘ 

IƻǳǎŜΦ .ǳǘ tŜǘŜǊ [ǳŘŦƻǊŘΣ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ ƻŦ .¦t! /ŀǊŜ ƘƻƳŜǎ ǘƘƛǎ ǿŜŜƪ ŘƛǎƳƛǎǎŜŘ ǘƘŜ 

ŦƛƴŘƛƴƎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ŎƭŀƛƳƛƴƎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀƴȅ ŦŀƛƭƛƴƎǎ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦƛŜŘ ǿŜǊŜ ƻƴƭȅ άaƛƴƻǊΦέ 

 

 

tǊƛǾŀǘŜ 9ȅŜ пκоκлрΣ .¦t! 5hbΩ¢ /!w9 Iha9{Φ 

.ȅ IŜŀǘƘŜǊ aƛƭƭǎΦ 

CƻǊƳŜǊ ŎŀǊŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ ǿƘƻ ƳŀŘŜ ǎŜǊƛƻǳǎ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ƴŜƎƭŜŎǘΣ ǇƻǘŜƴǘƛŀƭƭȅ Ŧŀǘŀƭ 

ŘƻǇƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƳƛǎǘǊŜŀǘƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ƻƭŘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ŀǘ LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜΣ ŀ .¦t! Ǌǳƴ ŎŀǊŜ ƘƻƳŜ 

ƴŜŀǊ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅ ƛƴ YŜƴǘΣ ƘŀǾŜ ŀǘ ƭŀǎǘ ƭŜŀǊƴŜŘ ǿƘŀǘ ŀŎǘƛƻƴ ǇƻƭƛŎŜ ǘƻƻƪ ƛƴ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜ 

ǘƻ ŀ ŘƻǎǎƛŜǊ ƻŦ ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ǘƘŜȅ ǎǳōƳƛǘǘŜŘ ǘƘǊŜŜ ȅŜŀǊǎ ŀƎƻΣ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ŀƭƭ ōǳǘ ƛƎƴƻǊŜŘΦ 
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bƻ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ǿŀǎ ǘŀƪŜƴ ŦǊƻƳ ŀƴȅ ǿƛǘƴŜǎǎΣ ƴƻ ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǎǘŀŦŦ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ 

ǿŀǎ ƛƴǘŜǊǾƛŜǿŜŘ ŀƴŘ .¦t! ƛǘΩǎ ǎŜƭŦ ǿŀǎ ƴŜǾŜǊ ŜǾŜƴ ŀǇǇǊƻŀŎƘŜŘ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ 

ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ Lƴ ŦŀŎǘ ǇƻƭƛŎŜ ƴƻǘŜǎ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘ ǘƘŀǘ Ƨǳǎǘ ŀ ŦŜǿ ƘƻǳǊǎ ŀŦǘŜǊ ǘƘǊŜŜ 

ōǳƴŘƭŜǎ ƻŦ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘǎΣ Ƴŀƛƴƭȅ ŎƻƳǇƭŜȄ ƳŜŘƛŎŀƭ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǎǳōƳƛǘǘŜŘ ƻŦŦƛŎŜǊǎ 

ƘŀŘ ŀƭǊŜŀŘȅ ŘŜŎƛŘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ άbƻ ŎǊƛƳŜ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ŎƻƴŦƛǊƳŜŘΦέ 

¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ŀƭŀǊƳƛƴƎ ǎƛƴŎŜ ƻƴ ŦŀŎŜ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǘƘŜ ƳŜŘƛŎŀƭ ǎƘŜŜǘǎ ǎŜŜƳŜŘ ǘƻ ǎƘƻǿ ǘƘŀǘ ŀ 

ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƎƛǾŜƴ ǇƻǘŜƴǘƛŀƭƭȅ Ŧŀǘŀƭ ŘƻǎŜǎ ƻŦ ǇƻǿŜǊŦǳƭ 

ŘǊǳƎǎΦ hƴŜ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘ 9Φt ό9Řƴŀύ ƘŀŘ ƻƴ ŦƻǳǊ ƻŎŎŀǎƛƻƴǎ ōŜŜƴ ƎƛǾŜƴ ŀ ŘƻǎŜ ƻŦ 

ǘǊŀƴǉǳƛƭƭƛǎŜǊ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŀǎ bƛƴŜ ǘƛƳŜǎ ǘƘŜ Řŀƛƭȅ ǇǊŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ŘƻǎŜΣ олƳƭǎ ŀƴŘ {ƛȄ ǘƛƳŜǎ 

ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ǘƘŜƴ ǿƘŀǘ ƛǎ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŜŘ ǎŀŦŜ ŦƻǊ ŀƴ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ǇŜǊǎƻƴΦ 9ȅŜ ǊŜŀŘŜǊǎ Ƴŀȅ ŀƭǎƻ 

ǊŜŎŀƭƭ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǎŜ ƻŦ !ǳŘǊŜȅ CƻǊŘ ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊ LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘ ǿƘƻ ǿŀǎ ǘŀƪŜƴ ǘƻ 

ƘƻǎǇƛǘŀƭ ǎǳŦŦŜǊƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ǎƛŘŜ-ŜŦŦŜŎǘǎ ƻŦ ŀ ǇƻǿŜǊŦǳƭ !ƴǘƛ-ǇǎȅŎƘƻǘƛŎ ǿƘƛŎƘ 

ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ƻƴƭȅ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ƎƛǾŜƴ ǘƻ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǎǳŦŦŜǊƛƴƎ ǎŜǾŜǊŜ ƳŜƴǘŀƭ ƛƭƭƴŜǎǎΣ ƭƛƪŜ 

{ŎƘƛȊƻǇƘǊŜƴƛŀΦ {ƘŜ ƴŜǾŜǊ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ /ƻǊƻƴŜǊ ǊŜŎƻǊŘŜŘ ŀƴ ƻǇŜƴ ǾŜǊŘƛŎǘ 

 

 

Y9b¢ hb {¦b5!¸ мκрκлр 

.ȅ WŀƳƛŜ aŎDƛƴƴƛǎΦ 

! ǇǊƛǾŀǘŜ ƘŜŀƭǘƘŎŀǊŜ ŦƛǊƳ Ƙŀǎ ŀǇƻƭƻƎƛǎŜŘ ƻǾŜǊ ƴŜǿ ŦƛƎǳǊŜǎ ŀǇǇŜŀǊŜŘ ǘƻ ǎƘƻǿ 

ǘƘŜ ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ Ŧŀƭƭǎ ŀǘ ŀ ŎŀǊŜ ƘƻƳŜ ƛǘ Ǌŀƴ ǿƘŜǊŜ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎƭȅ 

ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘŜŘΦ .¦t! ǿƘƛŎƘ Ǌŀƴ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ ǳƴǘƛƭ ƭŀǎǘ ƳƻƴǘƘ ƘŀŘ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜǊŜ 

ǿŜǊŜ ƻƴƭȅ мс ƴƛƎƘǘ ǘƛƳŜ ά!ŎŎƛŘŜƴǘǎέΣ ōǳǘ ŀ ƴŜǿƭȅ ǳƴŜŀǊǘƘŜŘ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǎƘƻǿǎ ǘƘŜǊŜ 

ǿŜǊŜ оп ƴƛƎƘǘ ǘƛƳŜ Ŧŀƭƭǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŀǘ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ŀƭƻƴŜΦ 9ƛƭŜŜƴ /Ƙǳōō ǊŜǉǳŜǎǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƎǳǊŜǎ 

ŦǊƻƳ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǿΣ CǊŜŜŘƻƳ ƻŦ LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ !ŎǘΦ aǊǎ /Ƙǳōō 

ǎŀƛŘ ǎƘŜ ǿŀǎ ŘƛǎǘǳǊōŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜŀŘ ƳƛƴǳǘŜǎ ƻŦ ŀ ƳŜŜǘƛƴƎ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ .¦t! ŀƴŘ 

.ǊƻƳƭŜȅ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŘŜǘŀƛƭŜŘ ŀƴ ƛƴŎƛŘŜƴǘ ǿƘŜǊŜ ŀ ŦǊŀƛƭ ƻƭŘ ǿƻƳŀƴ ŀǘ LǎŀǊŘ 

ƘƻǳǎŜ ǿŀǎ ŦƻǳƴŘ ǿƛǘƘ ŀ ōǊƻƪŜƴ ŀǊƳ ƻƴŜ ƳƻǊƴƛƴƎ ƛƴ CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ нллпΣ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 

ƳƛƴǳǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ ŎƻƳǇƭŀƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǎǘŀŦŦ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ŦƻǳƴŘ 

ǎƭŜŜǇƛƴƎ ƻƴ ŘǳǘȅΦ IƻǿŜǾŜǊ ǘƘƛǎ ƛƴŎƛŘŜƴǘ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ŀǇǇŜŀǊ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ Ŧŀƭƭ ǎǘŀǘƛǎǘƛŎǎ ŦƻǊ 

Wŀƴ ǘƻ Wǳƭȅ нллпΦ ¢ŜǊǊȅ wƛŎƘ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ ƻŦ {ƻŎƛŀƭ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǎŀƛŘ ƘŜ ŘƛŘ ƴƻǘ ǿŀƴǘ ǘƻ 

ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ Ŧŀƭƭǎ ŦƛƎǳǊŜǎ ǎŀȅƛƴƎ ǘƘŀǘ /{/L ŎŀǊǊȅ ƻǳǘ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊ ƛƴǎǇŜŎǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǘ 

LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜΦ 
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¢I9 b9²{Ihtt9wΦ моκтκлр 

.ȅ .ŜŘŜ aŎDƻǿŀƴΦ 

²ƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎ ŀǊŜ ŎŀƭƭƛƴƎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎƛƎƴŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀ {ƻŎƛŀƭ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŎƘƛŜŦ ŀŦǘŜǊ ŀ 

ŘŀƳƳƛƴƎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǿŀǎ ǇǳōƭƛǎƘŜŘ ƛƴǘƻ ŎŀǊŜ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ŀǘ ǎƛȄ .¦t! ƘƻƳŜǎΣ {Ƙŀǿ 

IŜŀƭǘƘŎŀǊŜ ǘƻƻƪ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ ǊǳƴƴƛƴƎ ƻŦ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅΩǎ ŎŀǊŜ ƘƻƳŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ƛƴ 

!ǇǊƛƭ лрΣ ǿƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘ Ǌŀƴ ƻǳǘΦ {ƛƴŎŜ ǘƘŜ ǘǊŀƴǎŦŜǊ нул ǎǘŀŦŦ ƘŀǾŜ 

ǳƴŘŜǊǘŀƪŜƴ ŀ ǘǊŀƛƴƛƴƎ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ ƻƴ ǎƪƛƭƭǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎΣ ǘƘŜ ŀŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 

ƳŜŘƛŎŀǘƛƻƴΣ ŀŘǳƭǘ ǇǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ǿƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿƛƴƎΦ aŜƳōŜǊǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .¦t! {ŜǾŜƴ 

ǊŜǎƛƎƴŜŘ ŀǎ ŎŀǎŜǿƻǊƪŜǊǎ ŦǊƻƳ LǎŀǊŘ ƘƻǳǎŜ ƛƴ мфффΣ ŀƭƭŜƎƛƴƎ ŀōǳǎŜ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ 

ǇƻǘŜƴǘƛŀƭƭȅ Ŧŀǘŀƭ ŘǊǳƎƎƛƴƎ ƻŦ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ǇŜƻǇƭŜΦ 

{ǇƻƪŜǎƳŀƴ 9ƛƭŜŜƴ /Ƙǳōō ǎŀƛŘ ά¢ƘŜ ŎŀǊŜ ŦŀƛƭƛƴƎǎ ƭƛǎǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǎƘƻǿ 

ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ǾǳƭƴŜǊŀōƭŜ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ƘŀǾŜ ǎǳŦŦŜǊŜŘ ŦƻǊ ǎƛȄ ȅŜŀǊǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǎǳŦŦŜǊƛƴƎ ǿŀǎ 

ǘƻǘŀƭƭȅ ŀǾƻƛŘŀōƭŜΣ ǿŜ ƴƻǿ Ŏŀƭƭ ŦƻǊ 5!±L5 wh.9w¢{Ωǎ ǊŜǎƛƎƴŀǘƛƻƴΦέ aǊ wƻōŜǊǘǎ 

ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜŘ ǘƻ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘΧ.¦t! ƘŀǾŜ ŀƭǿŀȅǎ ǎŀƛŘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ƴƻ ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ 

ǘƘŜ .¦t! {ŜǾŜƴǎ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ŀ .¦t! ǎǇƻƪŜǎƳŀƴ ǎŀƛŘ ά²Ŝ ǎǘǊƻƴƎƭȅ ǊŜŦǳǘŜ ŀƴȅ 

ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘƛƻƴ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǿ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǊ ƛƴƘŜǊƛǘŜŘ ǇƻƻǊ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅ ŎŀǊŜΦέ 

 

 

 

twL±!¢9 9¸9Φ мсκтκлрΦ  

.ȅ IŜŀǘƘŜǊ aƛƭƭǎΦ 

LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜΣ .ǊƻƳƭŜȅ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎŦǳƭ ǘǊŀƴǎŦŜǊ ƻŦ ǎƛȄ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ŎŀǊŜ 

ƘƻƳŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ .¦t! ǘƻ {ƘŀǿΣ ƳŀƪŜǎ ǾŜǊȅ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘƛƴƎ ǊŜŀŘƛƴƎΣ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ 

LǎŀǊŘ IƻǳǎŜ ǿƘŜǊŜ ǎŜǾŜƴ ²ƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎ ƭƻǎǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ Ƨƻōǎ ŀŦǘŜǊ ƳŀƪƛƴƎ ŀƭƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ƻŦ ŀōǳǎŜΣ ŘǊǳƎƎƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƛƭƭ-ǘǊŜŀǘƳŜƴǘΣ 

¢ƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǎŀƛŘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƧƻǊ ŀǊŜŀǎ ƻŦ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴΣ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǊƎŜ ƴǳƳōŜǊǎ ƻŦ 

ŀŘƳƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ƘƻǎǇƛǘŀƭ ƻŦ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ Ŧŀƭƭǎ ŀƴŘ ƛƭƭ-ƘŜŀƭǘƘ ƘŀŘέ 

{ƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘƭȅ ǊŜŘǳŎŜŘΦέ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ƎƻƻŘ ƴŜǿǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘǎ ŀǎ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ŀǎ ƭƻƴƎ ŀƎƻ 

ŀǎ мффф ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ .¦t! ²ƘƛǎǘƭŜ-ōƭƻǿŜǊǎ ƭƻǎǘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƧƻōǎΣ ŜǾŜǊ ǎƛƴŎŜ ǘƘŜȅ ƘŀǾŜ ƘŀŘ 

ǘƻ ŦƛƎƘǘ ǘƻƻǘƘ ŀƴŘ ƴŀƛƭ ǘƻ ƎŜǘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭ ŀƴŘ .¦t! ǘƻ ŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŎƭŀƛƳǎΣ ǘƘŜ 

ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭ Ǉǳǘ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘ ǘƻ ǘŜƴŘŜǊ ƭŀǎǘ ȅŜŀǊΣ .¦t! ƘƻǿŜǾŜǊ ǊŜƳŀƛƴǎ ƛƴ 

ŘŜƴƛŀƭΣ ǎǇƻƪŜǎƳŀƴ hƭƛǾŜǊ ¢ƘƻƳŀǎ ǎŀƛŘ ά²Ŝ ǎǘǊƻƴƎƭȅ ǊŜŦǳǘŜ ŀƴȅ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘƛƻƴ ǘƘŀǘ 

ǘƘŜ ƴŜǿ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǊ ƛƴƘŜǊƛǘŜŘ ǇƻƻǊ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅ ŎŀǊŜΣ ǘƘŜ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƻǊǎ ǿŜǊŜ ŀƭǿŀȅǎ 

ǎŀǘƛǎŦƛŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊŜ ǿŜ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘΦέ 
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From Beyond the Façade by Eileen Chubb page 293 

 

L ƘŀŘ ŀŎŎŜǇǘŜŘ ƭƻƴƎ ŀƎƻ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŎƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ƴƻ ƴƛŎŜ ƴŜŀǘ ŜƴŘƛƴƎΣ ǘƘŜ ŘǊŀƳŀǘƛŎ 

ŎƻǳǊǘ ǎŎŜƴŜ L ƘŀŘ ƻƴŎŜ ƛƳŀƎƛƴŜŘ ǿƘŜǊŜ ƧǳǎǘƛŎŜ ƛǎ Ŧƛƴŀƭƭȅ ŘƻƴŜΦ L ƴƻǿ ƪƴƻǿ ƛǎ 

ǎƻƳŜǘƘƛƴƎ ǘƘŀǘ ƻƴƭȅ ŜǾŜǊ ƘŀǇǇŜƴŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƳƻǾƛŜǎΦ 

.ǳǘ ǘƘƛǎ ǎǘƻǊȅ ǿŀǎ ƳǳŎƘ ōƛƎƎŜǊ ŦƻǊ ƛǘ ǎƘƻǿŜŘ ǿƘŀǘ ǿŀǎ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƘŜŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 

ǎȅǎǘŜƳΣ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ƴƻǘ ŀ ǉǳŜǎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ Ƙƻǿ ƘŀǊŘ L ƘŀŘ ǘƻ ŦƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ǎǘƻǇ ŀōǳǎŜΣ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ 

ǘƘŀǘ L ŜǾŜǊ ƘŀŘ ǘƻ ŦƛƎƘǘ ŀǘ ŀƭƭΦ 

L ƘŀŘ ŀƭǿŀȅǎ ƧƻƪŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ƻƴŜ Řŀȅ L ǿƻǳƭŘ ǿǊƛǘŜ ƛǘ ŀƭƭ Řƻǿƴ ŀƴŘ ƴƻǿ ǿƛǘƘ Ƴȅ ƭŜƎ 

ƛƴ ǇƭŀǎǘŜǊ L ŀƳ ŘƻƛƴƎ Ƨǳǎǘ ǘƘŀǘΦ 

Lǘ ƛǎ ƻƴƭȅ ƴƻǿ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ǎǘƻǊȅ ƛǎ Ŧƛƴŀƭƭȅ ǘƻƭŘ ǘƘŀǘ L ǊŜŀƭƛǎŜ ǿƘȅ L ŦŜƭǘ ǎƻ ŘǊƛǾŜƴ ǘƻ 

ǿǊƛǘŜ ƛǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǇƭŀŎŜΦ 

¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ǘǊǳǘƘ ŀƴŘ ƛŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ǿƻǊŘǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŀŘ ōȅ ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ ǘǊǳǘƘ Ƙŀǎ 

ǇǊŜǾŀƛƭŜŘΦ 

¢ƘŜ ƧǳǎǘƛŎŜ L ƘŀŘ ǎƻ ƭƻƴƎ ǎƻǳƎƘǘ ǿŀǎ ƴƻǘ ǘƻ ōŜ ŦƻǳƴŘ ƛƴ ŀƴȅ ŎƻǳǊǘΣ ƴƻǊ ǿŀǎ ƛǘ 

ŦƻǊǘƘŎƻƳƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ŀƴȅ ƧǳŘƎŜΣ ōǳǘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ŀ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ƧǳǎǘƛŎŜ ǿƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ ǘǊǳǘƘ 

ǇǊŜǾŀƛƭǎΦ 

 

¢Ƙŀƴƪ ȅƻǳ ŦƻǊ ōŜŀǊƛƴƎ ǿƛǘƴŜǎǎ ŦƻǊ 9ŘƴŀΣ WŜǎǎƛŜΣ 5ƻǘΣ wŜƎΣ [ƛƭΣ CƭƻǊƛŜΣ LǾȅ ŀƴŘ ŀƭƭ 

ǘƘŜ ƻǘƘŜǊǎ ǿƘƻǎŜ ǎǳŦŦŜǊƛƴƎ ǿŀǎ ƘŜƭŘ ǎƻ ŎƘŜŀǇΣ ȅƻǳ ŀǊŜ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƧǳǎǘƛŎŜΦ 
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                                         BUPA HOME 2 

  

                    WENTWORTH CROFT  PETERBOROUGH. 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) August 2006. 

The family of a resident had previously raised concerns with the home 

about the lack of basic care, which included dehydration, an untreated sore 

on their motherôs neck and a blocked catheter. Their relative had caught 

MRSA whilst in the home. Three months later the resident died from sepsis 

as a result of a grade four pressure sore. 

 

Incident Report (Source Compassion in Care letter to CQC) 

In the summer of 2006, J removes her relative H from the home and makes 

a formal complaint. She would find H without food or drink, so saturated 

in urine it had soaked through the chair and pooled on the floor. H suffered 

drastic weight loss which was reversed once he was removed from the 

home. Haloperidol drugs were obtained in his name and not accounted for 

over a long period of time. J never had her concerns investigated and rang 

our helpline; she could not understand why the Safeguarding Adults Board 

(The Authority that investigates all allegations of abuse) did not take 

action. I obtained information that listed the members of the Safeguarding 

Adults Board, among them the manager from Bupas Wentworth Croft. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2006. 

The NMC strike off Nurse Bernadette Searle for abusing residents at this 

home. The incidents included medication abuse and tying dementia 

sufferers to chairs over a 4 year period (2000 to 2004) 

 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) 4
th
 August 2006. 

A relative contacts the regulator saying her mother was left distressed on 

the toilet for over 2 hours with her call bell unanswered. Safeguarding ask 

the home to investigate themselves. Wentworth Croft concludes the resident 

chose to stay on the toilet for 2 hours. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2007. 

NMC Strike off Nurse Julie Nash for abusing frail residents at Wentworth 

croft. 

 

 Incident Report (Source FOI) 19th November 2007. 

An anonymous Whistle-blower rings CQC with concerns staffing levels are 

so low that residents care is at risk. 
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Incident Report (Source FOI) 5
th
 December 2007. 

A relative rings CQC desperate for help, says their loved one is dying of 

thirst. 

 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) 4
th
 September 2008. 

A resident from Wentworth Croft rings the local authority to report a 

member of the night staff, saying he is very rough and shouts at her. This 

resident is so afraid she barricades herself in her bedroom whenever this 

care worker is on duty. The resident is concerned for the other residents 

also. The home manager is asked to investigate. 

 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) 23
rd
 September 2008. 

A second Whistle-blower rings CQC and says that standards have gone 

down in Wentworth Croft in the last two months and a lot of good staff are 

leaving. Staff morale is very low and a lots of people are going off sick with 

stress. Staffing levels are below an acceptable level. Where there should be 

8 or 9 staff per shift there are only 4 or 5.  There has been no laundry for 7 

days, no clean sheets for beds, and the sheets that are available are 

threadbare and torn. There are no pillows except those with the name of a 

hospital printed on them which are filthy. The Whistle-blower says they are 

working a 72 hour week, residents care is suffering and they give the name 

of a resident who has developed pressure sores as a result. 

The Whistle-blower said they had told the manager of Wentworth Croft 

about these concerns and felt fobbed off as nothing had changed. 

The CQC asks the Whistle-blower if they can pass on the concerns to the 

manager, which they do. The manager responds to the CQC stating their 

previous actions were sufficient. 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) September 2008. 

Wentworth Croft informs CQC that a third Whistle-blower has made 

allegations about a member of night nursing staff. The Whistle-blower 

states various forms of abuse have taken place over time. The manager says 

none of the allegations involve assault. The allegations are subsequently 

noted to range from rough handling to physical assaults. CQC inform 

Safeguarding. 

 

 

 

 



12 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) 7
th
 October 2008. 

 A relative informs CQC that they found their relative in bed in Wentworth 

Croft, there was a strong smell of urine and their relative was cold as the 

window was left open. There room was dirty with clothes and food strewn 

across the floor. The home manager was asked to investigate. The outcome 

was the resident was referred to the Community Psychiatric Nurse (CPN) 

But such a response is not dealing with the neglect. 

 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) 2008. 

Wentworth Croft informs the CQC that a resident in the home alleges they 

were verbally abused by a member of staff and that another staff member 

witnessed this. The staff member was suspended but subsequently 

reinstated as the witness said they did not see anything. 

 

 

Incident Report (Source F.O.I) 24th December 2008. 

A relative raises concerns that his wife, who went into Wentworth Croft for 

respite care had been left in bed and she developed a grade 2 pressure sore. 

She had been found lying in faeces. She had lost weight and became poorly 

in the short time she was in that home. The husband says he had to work 

hard to get her back to how she was prior to entering the home. He is 

worried because she is due to stay there again; he does not want to 

complain but just wants her to be cared for. 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) 20
th
 January 2009. 

A resident from Wentworth Croft is found on the floor with a large bruise 

on their forehead which is not consistent with a fall. There is also bruising 

on her arm consistent with being squeezed. It was concluded by the home 

manager that she was assaulted by another resident. 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) March 2009. 

CQC is called by a member of the public on behalf of a fourth Whistle-

blower who fears losing her job and wishes to remain anonymous. 

The caller says they were shocked when told of the concerns which relate to 

the welfare of residents and staff and how Wentworth Croft is being run. 

The whistle-blower has worked in that home two years and has seen the 

following, 

A resident told the Whistle-blower that night staff had dragged her out of 

bed and that is how she sustained a broken thumb. The manager at 

Wentworth Croft told staff not to report this. 

Residents have an allowance of Ã20.00 which should be used to buy what 

they need such as toiletries, this allowance is not being used for them and 



13 

 

the residents have no toiletries and the men have to be shaved with blunt 

razors. 

Some residents are being put at serious risk of harm because they are being 

mixed with violent disruptive residents. 

A female resident (Who was named) was sexually assaulted by a male 

resident and the manager told staff not to report this. 

Call bells are ringing for up to an hour at a time as there are not enough 

staff to attend to residents. 

The manager was said to have poor relations with staff and was 

unapproachable. 

The rotas were completed according to which staff were liked or had been 

good to the manager they were getting the best shifts. 

Staff were afraid of making a complaint or speaking out because it would 

go against those staff if the manager found out. 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) May 2009 

A fifth Whistle-blower who works for an agency was concerned after 

working a shift at Wentworth Croft and reported her concerns to the 

agency who told her to ring CQC, which she did. 

The Whistle-blower said staff had told her some of the staff hit the 

residents. She said hoists were not used correctly. 

A resident who had MRSA was sitting with other residents with an open 

undressed wound on their hand. 

Another resident with a pressure sore was in obvious pain. 

She said hygiene in Wentworth Croft was appalling. 

She had been told another Whistle-blower raised concerns but no action 

was taken apart from transferring a staff member to another unit within 

the home. 

 

Incident Report (Source FOI) September 2009. 

The Safeguarding Adults Board informed the CQC of concerns reported 

about the care of a resident at Wentworth Croft. That staff were not 

turning this person, their ear drops were not administered, and their blood 

sugars were not monitored and they did not receive the pain killers 

prescribed. The concerns were partially upheld. 

 

My Full Report on Wentworth Croft Can be found on 

www.compassionincare.com Tales of the Un-Inspected (40) 

The FOI document can be found in the appendix section at the back of this 

report. 

 

 

 

http://www.compassionincare.com/
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                                            BUPA HOME 3 

 

                              OAKHURST GRANGE   CRAWLEY 

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) December 2
nd
 2009. 

 

Things got so bad in Oakhurst Grange it was reported in the local paper. 

A Bupa spokesperson said: 

ñWe take the issues raised in the CQC inspection seriously. Following the 

inspection in October we immediately implemented an extensive 

improvement plan to ensure standards are raised as quickly as possibleò 

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2010 

NMC strike off Bupa senior nurse Violet Ruto. She went to work a shift in 

another Bupa home nearby and was reported for arriving at work so drunk 

she could barely stand. She was asked to carry out a medication round. She 

was later discovered slumped over the medication trolley. No one seems to 

have asked why she was told to do the medication in this state? The shift at 

Aston Grange occurred on December 1
st
 2010. 

However prior to this, in November 2010, whilst working at Oakhurst 

Grange the Deputy Manager noted she was so drunk she nearly fell of a 

chair twice and had to be escorted from the building. She was observed 

teetering up the path and falling into the bushes. This was not enough to 

stop Ms Ruto returning to work shifts at Oakhurst Grange 

Other witnesses gave evidence of incidents at Oakhurst Grange, staff were 

unable to locate Ms Ruto on one occasion and on another   Ms Ruto was 

found asleep in a cupboard. 

What is more worrying is the fact that 28 days after she was reported as 

drunk on December 1
st
 2010 by Ashton Grange, she was still working shifts 

at Oakhurst Grange, where on December 29
th
 she was noted to be so drunk 

she mistook a teddy bear for a baby.   

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) June 2013 

It is announced that the council is moving 52 residents from Oakhurst 

Grange as their safety and welfare is at risk, three and a half years after the 

first media report on this home noted serious concerns about the welfare of 

residents. Bupa subsequently closed the home.   
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                                             BUPA HOME 4 

 

                     WEST RIDINGS CARE HOME  WAKEFIELD 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) November 2004. 

Health and Safety prosecute Bupa after 90 year old Phyllis Jewson is 

dropped from a hoist at West Ridings care home and dies from a brain 

Haemorrhage. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) January 2009. 

NMC caution nurse after she obtained drugs from West Ridings care home 

and was selling them in the car park. The drugs were prescribed to 

residents who would not have received their medication due to it being 

stolen. 

 

Incident Report (Health and Safety Case,) September 2009. 

Health and Safety prosecute Bupa after 80 year old Muriel Lindley 

fractures both legs after being dropped by a care worker who was working 

alone. This care worker had only started work at West Ridings care home a 

few days earlier. Muriel Lindley died a few days later. 

 

My full report on West Ridings care home can be found at 

www.compassionincare.com Tales of the Un-Inspected (42) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.compassionincare.com/
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                                            BUPA HOME 5 

 

                             ST JAMES PARK   BRADPOLE 

 

  

 

Incident Report (See NMC v Priscilla Smith) 2008. 

Nurse Priscilla Smith is struck off by the NMC for falling asleep on duty; 

she was allowing dangerous administration of medication over a long 

period of time. 

 

 

Incident Report (See NMC v I. Haskins) August 2009. 

Nurse I Haskins is struck off by the NMC for administering un-prescribed 

drugs to residents, falsifying medical records and carrying drugs hidden on 

her person. She took call bells away from residents. One care worker blew 

the whistle and said Haskins administration of the drug Temazapan was 

the last straw. Haskins had worked at St James Park since the 1990s yet in 

all the time she worked there many staff must have witnessed her 

behaviour. The Temazapan she administered to residents were not 

prescribed for those residents and were taken from the homes stocks but 

the missing drugs should have been noticed. 

 

My full report on St James Park can be found at 

www.compassionincare.com Tales of the Un-Inspected (51) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.compassionincare.com/
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                                             BUPA HOME 6 

 

                  CLAREMONT CARE HOME   AYR SCOTLAND 

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2008. 

Care worker Zoe McGinn 18, is dismissed for posting vile comments about 

the residents at Claremont on the internet. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2008. 

NMC strike off Nurse Frederick Pearson for shoving an elderly resident 

who had dementia. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2009. 

Nurse David Rodger is convicted for slapping an elderly resident at 

Claremont. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2012. 

Janice Glover a senior care worker at Claremont is accused of abusing 

residents and staff between 2009 and 2011. 

Glover is said to have stuck a pen into one residentôs ear and left another to 

sleep on the floor. She continually banged on a window to torment one of 

the residents and used foul language. Staff were said to feel intimidated and 

bullied. 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) June 22
nd
 2013. 

Nurse Zareena Khatun was reported to the NMC after a resident died on 

the night of June 22
nd
.  Resident A was found on the floor with injuries to 

his face and forehead. He was administered Temazapan and no 

neurological checks were carried out. 
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                                                BUPA HOME 7 

 

     DONNINGTON NURSING HOME  NEWBURY BERKSHIRE 

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2011 

Whistle-blowers inform the CQC of widespread concerns about residents 

care at Donnington. The CQC inspect the home and finds a resident in a 

urine soaked bed as staff are too busy to attend to him. Residents are found 

to have been left without enough to eat or drink. The home was dirty and it 

smelt. 

Bupa says they are putting an action plan in place to bring in new 

management and retrain staff. 

However, the staff knew that what was happening was wrong, and they 

took their concerns to CQC. It is not the staff that need training. 

There are clearly too few staff to care for people. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  July 2014. 

Nurse Barbara Kowalska ranted at elderly cancer patient Albert Inggall 

calling him dirty and filthy and rubbed faeces on his nose telling him ñ If 

you do that again you will be eating S*** cakeò The care assistant who 

witnessed this reported it to a colleague as she was too afraid to say 

anything to Kowalska. 

 

 

 

 

                                               BUPA HOME 8 

 

                                WARREN HALL   TIVEDALE 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) December 2010 

In 2007 an 81 year old resident at Warren Hall, Ronald Kemble was found 

in agony by his daughter. It was discovered that four hours earlier staff had 

inserted a feeding tube into his lung. He died as a result of this. Bupa 

refused to admit liability and Mr Kembleôs daughter had to fight for three 

years before Bupa offered an out of court settlement. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  March 2014. 

A 25 year old care worker is arrested after allegations that he sexually 

assaulted an 85 year old resident at Warren Hall. He has been bailed 

pending inquiries. 
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                                                BUPA HOME 9 

 

                            WILMINGTON MANOR,  DARTFORD. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) November 2010. 

The Deputy home manager who is also head of care at Wilmington Manor 

is convicted of assault. Nurse Kate Ugohugwu was observed on two 

occasions force feeding 102 year old Henry Hobbins. Other staff pleaded 

with her to stop but she dismissed their concerns. 

 

 

Post 1 

Incident Report  ( Source Comments Sunday Express Newspaper ) 31/5/09. 

ñ My mother died in a Bupa home in Wilmington, Dartford. The care she 

received was terrible and we were going to try and sue them. They never 

phoned us when she was dying till it was too late. When we asked for all the 

care plans  she had died alone.  Then when we read more into the paper 

work we discovered that some weeks before she was in terrible pain 

screaming out on ten occasions all they gave her was Paracetamol and they 

wrote still in pain. They never reported it to the Doctor or us for stronger 

pain killers. She also developed a pressure sore on her heel and two of her 

toes which went Gangrenous which was written by a nurse on the care plan 

but they never informed the Doctor. It was only ten days after my Brother 

noticed my motherôs toes and told them to call a doctor, also she had a 

small stroke and they said she was OK, it was only us that had to tell them 

to call a doctor. I could go on even more about all the other terrible 

treatment my mother received at this Bupa homeò 

 

Post 2 

ñ My aunt was in a Bupa Home, she was severely dehydrated, 

malnourished and had rotting, gangrenous pressure sores. The CSCI ( Now 

CQC ) colluded with Bupa at every opportunity. Bupa believes ( i.e. its 

directors and care workers) that it is unaccountable, what do old people 

do? They die. The list of elderly people with dementia abused and neglected 

in Bupa homes reads like a scroll of the war dead. There is a common 

theme of malnutrition, dehydration and pressure sores in most of the cases. 

Following my aunts death I wrote to Bupas chairman and CEO asking, 

either your care workers have full cognitive awareness and know what they 

are doing to residents or they are intellectually sub normal and do not. 

They could not reply. The day is coming when Bupa WILL be held 

accountable for the terrible suffering and worse they have inflicted on 

elderly vulnerable residentsò 
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Post 3 

ñ I have worked in one of their homes and helped place my grandfather 

there. What a mistake that was. I feel he would have lived longer if we had 

not done so. The way he was treated was disgraceful, near the end of his life 

he was in severe pain and had not been encouraged to be mobile for a long 

time. He was left in his room most of the time and near the end he needed 

oral morphine to control pain. He could not take it he was choking on 

water never mind anything else. I know and will stand in a court of law to 

state he did not have it, as I had it in my hand they filled in the drugs 

register saying he had it. Therefore leaving him to die in pain. But for us 

complaining that is what would have happened. Further to our complaints 

I was forced out of my job by a regime of bullying and intimidationò 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 BUPA HOME 10 

 

                                    CLARE HALL   SOMMERSET 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Health and Safety )  26
th
 June 2002. 

Health and Safety fines Bupa Ã23,000 as a result of a fatality at Clare Hall. 

Bupa did not control the risks of bed rails including the suitability of 

equipment, failure to provide Health and Safety information and written 

instructions for staff. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) March 2007. 

Bupa is fined Ã35,000 after a second resident dies after becoming in-tangled 

in bed rails at Clare Hall. Bupa were found to have the same poor risk 

assessment and inadequate staff training. 

 Two deaths in five years as a result of the same failings in the same home. 
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                                              BUPA HOME 11 

 

                        AMBERLEY COURT,  BIRMINGHAM. 

 

 

 Incident Report ( Source Media reports ) 2005 

Bridget OôCallaghan was admitted to Amberley Court for respite care, she 

was wheeled into her bedroom and should have been assisted to bed but 

was left fully dressed in her wheelchair. She was discovered dead the next 

morning. She had slid down in her wheelchair and been strangled by the 

lap belt. The nurse in charge the previous night had written notes saying 

Mrs OôCallaghan had been checked hourly, she left the country before any 

charges could be brought. 

 

 

 

                                                 BUPA HOME 12 

 

                                    AMERIND GROVE    BRISTOL 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 2011. 

Three years after complaining about the care of his mother Iris Shepway 

received in Amerind Grove care home. Her sonôs complaint is upheld by 

the LGO (Ombudsman). The local authority are ordered to pay Ã6.000 and 

the costs of removing Mrs Shepway to another home. 

Complaints were made to both Bupa and the local authority in 2008 by Mrs 

Shepways son, who found her lying in a soiled bed scratching her legs 

which were bleeding. She had obviously been left there a long time. 

The Ombudsman said: 

ñ I find this particularly troubling in view of  the number of serious 

safeguarding alerts ( About Amerind Grove ) the council were receiving 

throughout the time Mrs Shepway was a resident. Had more robust action 

been taken by the council then the poor standard of care she received may 

have been detected soonerò 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) October 2012. 

Lesley Weir a staff member at Amerind Grove is found guilty of theft. 
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                                               BUPA HOME 13 

 

                       ABBOTSLEIGH MEWS    SIDCUP   KENT 

 

Incident Report ( Health and Safety prosecutions ) 2003. 

93 year old Charlotte Woods is dropped from a hoist at Abbotsleigh Mews 

and dies from her injuries. Bupa are prosecuted by Health and Safety and 

fined Ã90,000.  A Health and Safety spokesperson said: 

ñ Untrained and poorly supervised care assistant working alone used the 

incorrect hoist to transfer a resident who fell and died from her injuries. 

Lots of policies and procedures but they were not implemented, training 

schedule similarly not followedò 

 

 

                                              BUPA HOME 14 

 

                        THE SIDCUP NURSING HOME   KENT 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) 2003 

78 year old Jean Bore dies in agony from multiple infected bedsores after 

spending four weeks at the Sidcup Nursing Home. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) January 2014. 

82 year old Irene Schoepff was found dead with a pillow over her face. 

Police officer attending the scene at the Sidcup home said; ñThat care 

assistant, Emily York, asked to speak to him alone as the home manager 

told the staff not to say much to the police.ò  The police believe it was 

suspicious. However it later emerged that Mrs Schoepff who was totally 

reliant on staff to turn her in bed, had probably suffocated. Recording a 

narrative verdict the Coroner said: 

ñ There was no satisfactory explanation for the position in which she was 

found. The precise circumstances of her position when found and the cause 

of death remain unexplainedò. 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 15 

 

                               ELM RIDGE    COULBY   NEWHAM 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 2004 

Trevor Morris dies from burns sustained six months earlier when he was 

scalded in the bath at Elm Ridge care home. 

 

 



23 

 

                                              BUPA HOME 16 

 

                             KINGSWOOD HOUSE    BROMLEY 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Health and Safety ) 2000 

Un-named male resident with dementia falls from an upper floor window. A 

passer-by calls an ambulance as the staff at Kingswood were unaware of 

the fall. The man dies from his injuries a few days later. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Local Media Reports ) 2004. 

Bupa loses the contract for the Bromley council homes. Which are taken 

over by Shaw Healthcare. Shaw Healthcare give the Council a detailed 

report listing widespread serious problems inherited from Bupa in all the 

former Bupa homes including Isard House and Kingswood house. 

Problems included 

Staff with outstanding disciplinary action against them. 

Poorly trained, un-supervised staff and some were not suitable to work in 

care. 

A disproportional high number of residents suffering falls and injuries 

requiring hospital treatment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                BUPA HOME 17 

 

                                 NETHERTON GREEN    DUDLEY 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) December 1999. 

Eleven residents die in a ten day period, six of the deaths were linked to flu. 
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                                               BUPA HOME 18 

 

                      HIGHFIELD CARE HOME    HALESWORTH 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) September 2002 

Joan Gadds a resident at Highfield care home is admitted to a local hospital 

suffering from infected bedsores and in renal failure due to severe 

dehydration. She dies a short while later. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                BUPA HOME 19 

 

                             BEDFORD CARE HOME   LEIGH 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) April 2003. 

Standards at the Bedford care home are slammed by angry relatives after 

their loved ones suffered appalling conditions and lack of basic care. 

Residents had suffered hunger and thirst, were left soiled and at risk from 

pressure sores. 

 

 

 

 

                                           BUPA HOME 20 

 

                              BEACON EDGE    CUMBRIA 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) July 2014 

William Bowman 22, Chevonne Benson 23, and Clare Strong 21 were all 

convicted of abusing elderly residents. Most of the abuse was listed during 

an earlier hearing and described as deeply disturbing by the judge. Only a 

few of the incidents at Beacon Edge were mentioned during the full 

hearing. Those incidents mentioned included: 

 

Taking photos of residents in humiliating positions. 

One resident stood sobbing as she had been told she needed Ã100 to sit in a 

chair. 

Another resident had her hair yanked. 

Others were assaulted and tormented. 
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A Whistle-blower Miss Burns, was working her first shift at Beacon Edge 

and was so disgusted by what she saw she immediately resigned and 

reported her concerns to Social Services. 

 

The News and Star asked Bupa why the abuse had gone undetected for 

such a long time and would any managers be disciplined? 

Bupa responded by implying their robust whistle-blowing policies had been 

used which clearly was not the case. 

 

If Miss Burns had not reported what she saw the abuse would have 

continued unchecked. The points I noted were; 

The Whistle-blower felt they had to resign in order to report the concerns. 

 If this one person could see so much that was wrong happening in the 

space of just one shift, why did no other staff working at Beacon Edge come 

forward and raise concerns? 

The Whistle-blower was new and yet the abusers felt complacent enough to 

carry out the abuse in front of her. This indicates a culture where the abuse 

of vulnerable people was carried out by perpetrators who felt safe to 

behave in this way. 

 

 

  

 

                                                BUPA HOME 21 

 

                                ST DAVIDS HOME     REDCAR 

 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report )  August 2004. 

Resident Dorothy Robson dies after a fire at St Davidôs care home and the 

ceiling collapsed onto her. A Coronerôs Inquest hears evidence from staff at 

St Davidôs that the evacuation was chaotic and staff were not fully trained 

in evacuation procedures. 
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                                                 BUPA HOME 22 

 

                                       THE DALES     BRADFORD 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  December 2010 

Three Care workers from the Dales care home are jailed, 

Jolene Hullah 21, and Tanzeela Safdar 23. 

Recorded their abuse on mobile phones as they assaulted, bullied and 

tortured elderly residents. The other worker involved in the abuse was 

named as Hannah Parveen who is believed to have fled to Pakistan. 

 

Several clips show elderly resident Mr Costigan being physically assaulted 

by laughing carers, his thumb pulled back causing considerable pain, 

hands pushed into his mouth. Mr Costigan holds his head in his hands and 

cry's in distress. The other resident filmed, Edith Askham, being bullied 

and assaulted as she sits on the floor crying òhelp me I am frightenedò. 

 

The third care worker jailed, Paul Poole, did not take part in the abuse but 

is caught on camera watching, and not intervening. He told the court he 

was too afraid to report it. 

The abuse was only discovered as a cousin of Jolene Hullah saw the film 

footage on her phone and then reported her to the care home who called 

police. 

 

Many staff in this home must have at some time witnessed what was going 

on and yet it was the family member of one of the abusers who raised the 

alarm. 

This case is noted to be one of the first cases brought under, The Mental 

Capacity Act. 

The first ever case prosecution was also a Bupa home. ( See Home 23 ) 
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                                               BUPA HOME 23 

 

                                   BAKERS COURT    LONDON 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 19
th
 August 2009. 

Nurse Romona Dublas, 41, has been convicted in the first ever prosecution 

under The Mental Capacity Act. Dublas photographed an 92 year old 

resident of Bakers Court, who had dementia. The un-named female 

resident was photographed held up by her wrists naked to the waist. 

A social worker at Newham Council was made aware of the photo and 

informed the police. A Newham council spokesman said: 

 ñ We are pleased to play a part in this successful prosecution, which 

resulted from good partnership work between the Council and Police. 

 

My full report on Bakers Court can be found at 

www.compassionincare.com Tales of the Un-inspected (35) 

 

 

 

 

 

                                               BUPA HOME 24 

 

                                ANCASTER COURT, HASTINGS 

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 17
th
 October 2009. 

Care worker Rebecca Reasbeck is charged with murder. She is alleged to 

have set light to the residentôs bed. Irene Herring 85,  died as a result of the 

arson attack. Reasbeck is bailed and banned from entering Ancaster Court 

pending trial. I checked to see if there was anything to stop her entering 

other care homes, there was not. 

Reasbeck was subsequently found guilty of manslaughter. 

She pleaded that she did not intend to kill Mrs Herring but wanted to raise 

the alarm for the attention of being the person to alert other staff that there 

was a fire. 
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                                             BUPA HOME 25 

 

                                   RIVER COURT     WATFORD 

 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 13
th
 February 2004 

Maud Lever 94 died at Kestral Court. Kestral Court is not a Bupa home 

however the nurse in charge on the night she died at Kestral Court was a 

full time nurse at Bupas River View Court. 

Maud Lever died from Hypothermia after been left sitting all night by an 

open window. Nurse Chandradeo Seeraton had worked all day at the Bupa 

home and all night at Kestral Court. He would be required to have a 

reference from Bupa for his second job. So each employer was aware that 

this Nurse was working 24 Hours shifts. 

A Coroner ruled Mrs Lever died as a result of neglect. 

 

 

Incident report ( Source Media Report ) 30
th
 April 2009 

91 year old Gwenoline Hoar died from horrifying bedsores; she was not the 

only resident in River View Court to suffer from such pressure sores was 

revealed at a Coronerôs inquest. 

After the home was said to be improving by the regulator it was upgraded 

from  zero to one star. The council lifted its embargo but soon after River 

View Court was found to have serious failures again. 

 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 26 

 

                        STONEDALE LODGE     LIVERPOOL 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Reports )  2010 

Bupa care home manager, Karen Southern, is convicted under The Mental 

Capacity Act. Bupa were slammed by the judge who accused them of 

putting profits ahead of the care of residents. 

During the hearing, a Whistle-blower who was a former manager gave 

damming evidence against Bupa. This evidence resulted in the successful 

prosecution. Nurses from the home said they had taken concerns to 

management but were ignored. 
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Joyce Farrow was a resident at Stonedale Lodge, her daughter Pauline 

Slaughter, kept a diary of what care her mother received, here are some of 

the extracts. 

July 14 2010 ñNo glassesô, no teeth, no shoes or socksò 

 

August 23  ñPlace is filthy, no one answered the door. There is a rat trap 

outside motherôs room, I saw a rat and told the nurse and she said it was 

because of the garden. More likely the stinking pile of rubbish out there. I 

am finding there is no such thing as an individual just a lady with 

dementiaò 

 

August 30
th  ñ
Found mother naked sat on a bed with a quilt over her headò 

 

 September 7
th
  ñThe day of Mrs Farrows death. 

I have complained and written and moaned and visited daily. I have failed 

to protect my mother, she has passed away, this is not a nursing home, there 

is no nursing going onò 

 

After the hearing Mrs Slaughter said; 

ñ Care home staff in this country are underpaid and overstretched and are 

afraid to report abuse in case they lose their jobs.ò 

Bupa said much has changed at Stonedale Lodge since. A recent survey 

found over 80% of relatives rated the home good or excellent. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  April 2012. 

Liz Perry has removed her mother from Stonedale Lodge and taken her 

concerns to the police. She said her 89 Year old mother had four accidents 

in just ten days at Stonedale Lodge and suffered serious injuries to her 

arm. Her mother was only placed in the home for respite care. The home 

said at first she had banged her arm on a table but later admitted they did 

not know how the injuries occurred. 

My full report on Stonedale Lodge can be found at 

www.compassionincare.com Tales of the Un-Inspected (55) 
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                                                BUPA HOME 27 

 

                                      BEECHCROFT     HASTINGS 

 

 

Incident Report   ( Source Media Report )   July 2003. 

95 year old Kathleen Challis was given a beaker of corrosive dishwasher by 

mistake. Staff at Beechcroft realised what happened after Mrs Challis spat 

out the fluid. They wiped her lips but the skin came away. Staff tried to 

help her but she died in Hospital from a pre-existing heart condition. A post 

mortem examination revealed she had suffered burns to her mouth, throat, 

larynx and the burns had gone through to her stomach. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                             BUPA HOME 28 

 

                       ASTON COURT       SUTTON COLDFIELD 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  May 2014. 

Iris Teal 91, suffered an unexplained fracture of her leg in October 2011 at 

Aston Court, and was admitted to hospital where her condition 

deteriorated and she died. It was not until a year later, in October 2012, 

after lawyers intervened on behalf of Mrs Tealôs family that Bupa issued an 

apology for the first time. 

 

The lawyers for the family said: 

ñ That it is so frustrating that two years on Mrs Teals family do not know 

what happened to Iris and they feel that Bupa have not done all they could 

to be open about the failings in care.ò 
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                                           BUPA HOME 29 

 

                UN-NAMED BUPA HOME        MANCHESTER 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Solicitors Web Site ) March 2012. 

92 year old Dorothy Mason fell from her wheelchair on March 10
th
 2011. 

She suffered cuts to her face and, over the next three days was unable to 

walk and became progressively more unwell. After a week she was 

admitted to Hospital where she died from aspiration pneumonia. Bupa 

denied any responsibility. 

 

It was not until the family took legal advice and obtained expert medical 

evidence that Bupa finally agreed to compensation in an out of court 

settlement. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                             BUPA HOME 30 

 

                                       CHASE VIEW       ESSEX 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) June 2007. 

A heartbroken son held a protest outside Chase View where his 82 year old 

mother, Lily Pannell, had been a resident for three months. She developed 

pressure sores that became infected and she was taken to hospital where 

she died on May 29th 2006. 

Her son, Paul Pannell, said: 

ñ That he hoped the protest might save any other family going through the 

same ordealò 

Bupa said: 

ñ They strongly denied the allegations and said the regulator was happy 

with the home.ò 

Chase View care home was issued a warning notice five years later, in 

February 2012 as things were so bad. 

 

If death from infected bedsores was not considered to be, ñNatural causesò 

then many others could have been spared from suffering and neglect. 
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                                             BUPA HOME 31 

 

                  ASHLEY CARE HOME        GLOSTERSHIRE 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report )  January 2008. 

Horatio Spurrio, 86, died from the last of nine falls at Ashley care home. 

At a Coronerôs inquest, a nurse from Ashley care home gave evidence, she 

said: ñBecause Mr Spurrio was a tall man he was difficult to manage and 

that he really needed one- to- one care.ò  

On the night of May 12
th,
 after Mr Spurrio fell and he was examined by 

staff at Ashley care home and judged to be without injuries. The next day 

he was sent to hospital as he was struggling to breathe and an X ray showed 

he had multiple rib fractures. He died later that day. The Coroner ruled 

accidental death. 

 

If the home knew he needed more care than they could provide, I would 

have asked what steps they had taken to get him transferred to a home that 

could provide the care he needed. 

 

 

                                               BUPA HOME 32 

 

                                       MEADBANK        LONDON 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Daily Mail Newspaper Report ) July 2009. 

An elderly resident from Meadbank care home, 80 year old Jeanne 

Matthews was admitted to hospital. Her family went to visit her at 

Meadbank and were so concerned they called an ambulance. 

A doctor at the hospital told the family that; ñIt was the worst case of 

dehydration they had ever seen.ò Mrs Matthews died a week later. 

 

Westminster Coroner, Dr Shirley Radcliffe said: 

 ñ Mrs Matthews had hugely high sodium levels, which suggest she was 

extremely dehydratedò she added: ñ I have been told Mrs Matthews had a 

bleeding cracked mouth and mouth ulcers. No one should be allowed to 

dehydrate to this level in a nursing home of any sort, let alone one run by 

Bupaò 

The Pathologist said: ñ Mrs Matthews had died from a lung infection but 

dehydration could have weakened her immunity. 

Because we cannot say why she died we have to record death by natural 

causes.ò 
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After the inquest Mrs Matthews Daughter said: ñMy Mother went into 

Meadbank, happy, bright and talkative, she came out in a coma. We visited 

three times a week and she was always thirsty, wanting to drink. I made 

complaints but nothing was done.ò 

 

 

See my full report on Meadbank at www.compassionincare.com Tales of 

the Un-Inspected (29) 

 

 

 

                                           BUPA HOME 33 

 

                                 DOVE COURT       BURNLEY 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  August 2009. 

A Coroner is to write to a medical supply company following the death of 

Margaret Grimoldby. Staff at Dove Court were adamant that the 69 year 

old  was too weak to climb out of a cocoon bed, but after she was given tea 

by staff she managed to climb out of the device and became entangled in 

wiring under the bed and died from strangulation. 

Recording an accidental verdict, the coroner said: 

ñ It was believed there was no chance of her getting out of this bed, but she 

did get out and what happened next is difficult to explain.ò 

 

 

 

 

                                                BUPA HOME 34 

 

                                 ASPEN COURT       DERBYSHIRE 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) June 2006. 

As part of a special investigation by the Times newspaper , an undercover 

reporter worked at Aspen Court and found cheap and nasty food being 

served. Several residents were sitting in front of uneaten food. 

Bupa said; People liked that kind of food. The reporter was basing her 

judgement on what she thought was good food. 
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                                             BUPA HOME 35 

 

                                  PUTTENHAM HILL       SURRY 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 2007 

A Coroner has ruled that neglect contributed to the death of diabetic Lesley 

Avenell  who died after being given an insulin injection by Nurse Gisha 

Thomas. The dose that should have been administered was 8 units. But he 

was given 84 units. He died in hospital the next day from pneumonia. The 

Coroner said: ñ But we cannot dismiss that the overdose contributed to his 

death. ñ 

The incident took place at Puttenham Hill care home. 

 

 

                                           BUPA HOME 36 

 

                        BARTON BROOK        MANCHESTER 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  February 2012. 

A nurseôs care of an elderly resident at Barton Brook just  before he died 

was called by a Coroner ñMinimal, unprofessional and ineffectiveò 

 

War veteran Harold Massey 83 died at Barton Brook. Nurse Carmelita 

Castro ignored the pleas of two care workers to call an ambulance. Mr 

Massey was turning blue and was in great pain. The two care staff 

continued to check Mr Massey every half hour. Mr Massey died from a 

severe urine infection on December 28
th
 2009. 

The Coroner said: ñ He could see potential for his life to have been saved if 

action had been taken earlier.ò 
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                                              BUPA HOME 37 

 

                                OAK LODGE        SOUTHAMPTON 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 2011. 

Oak lodge has been issued warning notices by CQC. A relative said: ñThey 

had raised concerns with staff at the homeò The CQC said: ñThe home was 

not protecting residents from the risk of abuse, medication was unsafe and 

staff were using the wrong lifting equipmentò 

 

 

 

 

 

                                               BUPA HOME 38 

 

                                 BERRY HILL        NOTTINGHAM 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Health and Safety improvement notices ) July 

2013. 

An improvement notice was issued to Bupa in respect of Berry Hill care 

home. Health and Safety said: ñ There was a failure to ensure that 

employees and service users were not exposed to Legionella bacteriaò 

 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 39 

 

                                  OLD GATES        BLACKBURN 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  August 2012. 

Abdulla Khan, a nurse at Old Gates was found guilty of five failures in 

care. An  elderly resident who broke her neck was left sobbing in pain. 

Khan gave two paracetamol to the resident. Care worker Zuleka Namaji 

said: ñThe resident was screaming in pain.ò 
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                                             BUPA HOME 40 

 

                                   MILLVIEW         LANCASHIRE 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) 2013. 

A care worker at Millview saw residents nipped and squeezed by care 

worker Maidi Nizeyimania. The care worker did not immediately report 

what she had seen but did so the following night to the Nurse on duty. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                              BUPA HOME 41 

 

                                MANLEY COURT           LONDON 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report )  September 2013. 

CQC visit Manley Court when informed of concerns. They find there are 

not enough staff and residents were left lying on soiled sheets. Some 

residents did not have a call bell. Another had not been given any food. 

 

 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 42 

 

                               ADMIRALS REACH         ESSEX 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) July 2014 

82 year old George Mason, left Admirals Reach un-noticed and wandered 

into the night. Mr Mason had Dementia. His body was found the next day 

at 10.40am he had drowned in the river Chelmer.   

The victimôs family attended a three day inquest last week their legal team 

said:  ñThere had been 23 failures of care at Admirals Reachò Bupa had 

also failed to inform the authorities that someone was missing from the 

home. 
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                                             BUPA HOME 43 

 

                                THE ELMS         WHITTERSLEY 

 

Incident Report ( Source NMC v Rona Davis ) 2012 

The manager of the Elms care home Rona Davis was struck off the nursing 

register by the NMC. She was responsible for the care of residents at The 

Elms where nine residents wasted away from Malnutrition. 

 

 

 

                                           BUPA HOME 44 

 

                          SHELTON LOCK          DERBYSHIRE 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) 2009 

Shelton Lock care home accepts that records were not kept correctly 

during a   Coronerôs inquest into the death of Ivy Ross 79. 

A verdict of natural causes was recorded. 

Food and fluid charts had not been completed for Mrs Ross. 

After the inquest Mrs Ross's son, Antony said ñ Itôs a shame this had to go 

to court before Bupa acknowledged there was a problem.ò 

 

 

 

 

                                             BUPA HOME 45 

 

                               STADIUM COURT             STOKE 

 

Incident Report  ( Source NMC ) 

Deputy manager and nurse Maria Regala had conditions imposed on her 

after a resident died from an overdose of Midazolam,at Stadium Court. 

For my full report on Stadium Court, see www.compassionincare.com Tales 

of the Un-Inspected (46) 
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                                           BUPA HOME 46 

 

                              PARKLANDS          BLOXWICH 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Health and Safety prosecutions ) 2007 

Irene Evens 91 died ten days after falling from a hoist sling whilst being 

moved by staff at Parklands. 

 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 47 

 

                           CARDERS COURT          CASTLETON 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report )  December 2011 

Barbara Oldham, 85, was discovered to have been given a sedative drug 

Promazine, on a near nightly basis for no reason. The inquiry also found 

that for a separate period of a week she was administered twice the 

prescribed dose. 

 

Her son said: ñHe had concerns about his motherôs care since she moved 

into Carders Courtò He added: 

 ñ His mother is now well cared for in another care home where it took six 

months to get the drugs out of her system, but she has not walked sinceò 

 

The Safeguarding Adults Board voted to uphold the concerns by four votes 

to three. Concluding that Mrs Oldham was physical abused whilst at 

Carders Court 

 The three members of The Safeguarding Adults Board who voted against 

upholding the concerns were, 

Racheal Dodge, Safeguarding 

Rose Elward,  Bupa, Carders Court 

Janine Kelly,   Bupa, Carders Court. 

 

It simply beggars belief that those responsible for the abuse of a vulnerable 

elderly resident are allowed to make these judgements. To me it is like 

giving someone charged with a murder a place on the jury. It is small 

wonder Safeguarding is such a failure. 
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                                           BUPA HOME 48 

 

                       THE RED HOUSE          PETERBOURGH 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source minutes of a meeting held at the Red House ) 2009 

HELD ON MAY 5TH 2009. 

 

Residents and Relatives present 19 (I have used initials to protect the identity 

of those present) 

 

Staff present. LS Manager, RD Deputy Manager, Activities Co-coordinator SP. 

 

AGENDA- CARE STAFF. A relative RS asked the manager if she thought there 

was enough care staff as he was not happy to see just one member of staff on 

duty in the old house at certain times. MR (relative) said she was shocked to 

see residents were confined to their rooms on Easter day due to staff 

shortages. 

The Manager LS said she was not aware of any shortages on Easter day, nor 

was she aware any residents had been confined to their rooms due to staff 

shortages. 

AH (Relative) said he visited on Easter day and can confirm what MR claims. 

LS (Manager) said she would look into this further. 

AH (Relative) said he had read the CSCI (REGULATORS) guidelines on staff for 

care homes and he felt the Manager was not employing enough staff to cover 

day and night shifts. He felt there should be one member of staff per five 

residents and asked the manager how many staff were on each shift. 

LS (Manager) said that if the home was at full capacity this would be the case if 

the staff were left as they were but there were staff to meet requirements. 

The Manager pointed out that there were times when staff rang in sick prior to 

a shift change over and so inevitably there would be a shift which occasionally 

was short of one carer. 

MR (Relative) said there was just four care staff on duty Easter Sunday for all 

the residents in the main building. 

MM (Relative) Said she was upset her husband had to wait forty five minutes 

after his request to use the toilet and it had caused him a lot of distress. 
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LS (Manager) Said if she could provide her with a date and time when this 

happened she would check it on the call bell recording system. 

MQ (Relative) said that he was fed up attending these meetings as nothing 

ever changed and he felt that LS (Manager) was just glossing over all the 

problems. He said she ( Manager) had been repeatedly told that problems with 

her staff were always evenings and weekends when no manager was around 

but still things had not improved. 

MS (RelatƛǾŜύ ǎŀƛŘ Ƙƛǎ ƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ Dt ŎƻǳƭŘ ƴƻǘ ǳƴŘŜǊǎǘŀƴŘ ǿƘȅ ǘƘŜ ǇƘƻƴŜ ǿŀǎ 

never answered in the home when he rang to speak to her. 

MR (Relative) asked Manager if she was aware that carers disappeared at 

teatime, she had noticed on many occasions that certain carers went off for 

breaks or just stood around talking over residents. 

MR ( Relative) Went on to say that when the dining room has no care staff 

ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ǳǎǳŀƭƭȅ ǘŜŀǘƛƳŜ ŀƴŘ ǿŜŜƪŜƴŘǎ ǿƘȅ ŘƻƴΩǘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŀŎŎŜǎǎ ǘƻ 

the call bell in case of emergencies. 

AH (Relative) said that he had repeatedly brought this up and he felt it very 

unsafe for residents to be left on their own in the dining room without any way 

of contacting a member of staff. 

LS (Manager) said that a care staff member was usually with residents in the 

dining room to which AH (Relative) replied this was not the case whenever he 

visited evenings or weekends. 

AH (Relative) said it was quite evident that when he did turn up a member of 

ǎǘŀŦŦ ǿƻǳƭŘ ǘƘŜƴ ŀǇǇŜŀǊ ŀƴŘ ǎǘŀȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ǾƛŎƛƴƛǘȅΦ 

Both MR and AH (Relatives) agreed that the kitchen staff were better with the 

residents than the care staff were. 

MR (Relative) said she was not prepared to give names but it was obvious to 

her that two or three of the care staff were just not suitable to the role of 

caring for the residents. 

RS (Relative) asked LS (Manager) if you are not as short staffed as you say then 

why do you work here some nights. To which LS replied that she covered 

ƴǳǊǎŜΩǎ ǎƘƛŦǘǎ ǿƘƛƭǎǘ ǘƘŜȅ ǿŜǊŜ ƻƴ ƳŀǘŜǊƴƛǘȅ ƭŜŀǾŜ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǎƘŜ Ŝƴjoyed closer 

contact with her residents by working occasional shifts. 

RH (Relative) said that the manager could take it that most people here this 

evening are not happy with the staffing situation. 
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RH (Relative) said he had read a report on forty homes in the area; two were 

excellent, twelve were good and some had not been rated as yet and asked the 

Manager what this home was rated at. The Manager said it was adequate but 

she hoped for improvement at the next inspection. 

AH (Relative) felt the results of the report were very worrying especially on 

medications being administered incorrectly this was putting residents at risk. 

LS (Manager) said she was well aware of what was written and that this issue 

had now been resolved and speaking to AH (Relative) she said that if CQC were 

concerned they would have intervened but this had not been the case. 

LS (Manager) said she personally ensured medications were now always 

delivered correctly. 

RQ (Resident in the home) Said that an agency nurse had given her more 

tablets than she required at the weekend and had she not been conscious of 

the fact she could have overdosed by taking more than she needed. 

AH (Relative) asked LS (Manager) if Company xxxx were happy with just an 

adequate marking for such a large home, to which LS replied they were quite 

happy with the way it was being run but of course we are striving to improve 

all the time. 

!I όwŜƭŀǘƛǾŜύ ŀǎƪŜŘ ǿƘȅ ŎŀǊŜ Ǉƭŀƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƴƻ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ƛƴ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ǊƻƻƳǎΦ [{ 

όƳŀƴŀƎŜǊύ ǊŜǇƭƛŜŘ ǘƘŜȅ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ƪŜǇǘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ƴǳǊǎŜǎΩ ǎǘŀǘƛƻƴ Ŧƻr the last four 

ȅŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǘŜŎǘ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ǇǊƛǾŀŎȅΦ 

RD (New Deputy) asked AH (Relative) where he had looked up the CQC report 

as most relatives read these reports before putting their relatives in a home. 

AH (Relative) relayed that he had come across the report purely by accident a 

few weeks ago and was not aware of its existence before now. 

RD (Deputy Manager) said she had been a manager and a deputy manager in 

care homes for many years and she had never sat at such a hostile residents 

and relatives meeting. 

RS (Relative) Said that perhaps it was time to move on to the rest of the 

agenda and LS ( Manager) said that if anyone has any problems they should 

always come to see her. To which RS (Relative) replied, I have been coming to 

you for the past two years but nothing appears to change. 

HOUSEKEEPING AND LAUNDRY. 

MR (Relative) said clothing had been returned in a shabby state. 
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w{ όwŜƭŀǘƛǾŜύ ǎŀƛŘ ǎŜǾŜǊŀƭ ƻŦ Ƙƛǎ ƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ ōƭƻǳǎŜǎ ƘŀŘ ƎƻƴŜ ƳƛǎǎƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ŜǾŜƴ 

though she had been financially compensated it was not good enough as these 

were presents and one of which cost seventy pounds, he felt he should not 

have to go to Borough to purchase replacement clothing for his mother 

because they were going missing and they were not paying for his time or fuel 

only the cost of missing garments.        

Several relatives asked if clothes were ironed as clothes were returned badly 

creased. LS (Manager) said that a steam iron was used so garments should not 

be returned creased. 

At this point RS (Relative) produced a pillowcase returned to his mother that 

day which was full of creases. 

RD (Deputy) said perhaps clothes were being tumbled dried for too long 

making them difficult to iron. 

LS (Manager) admitted there had been problems in the laundry recently and 

would speak to them tomorrow to get things improved. 

Both MM and S daughter said that for the money they were paying each 

month they should not have to take washing home to do and LS (Manager) 

agreed. 

MS asked the Manager how often she held meetings with her staff, especially 

laundry and kitchen staff- LS (Manager) said that as a matter of course this was 

done at least once a month. 

AH (Relative) asked if he could change the subject by asking if shift hours could 

be changed for care staff as changeover times 8am to 8pm meant that there 

was actually no care available on the floor for residents needs unless it was an 

emergency. 

LS (Manager) said this was currently being discussed with care staff that seems 

to be keen to try a change. 

RQ (Resident) asked what exactly is a key worker to with LS manager replied 

ǘƘŀǘ ŀ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ƪŜȅ ǿƻǊƪŜǊ Ƙŀǎ ǘƘŜ ŎƭƻǎŜǎǘ ŎƻƴǘŀŎǘ ǿƛǘƘ ȅƻǳΤ ǎƘŜ ƛǎ ǘƘŜǊŜ ǘƻ 

answer any problems and pick up anything from the shops you may want. 

RQ (Resident) asked if she meant like a birthday card or present to which LS 

manager said yes. 

MR Q said it might be an idea to put a photo of the key worker up with the 

name so residents found it easier to know exactly who their key worker is; 

everyone present thought this was a very good idea. 
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KITCHEN. 

RS Relative said reading xxxx website gave the impression that the chef 

manager was responsible for fresh healthy choice meals and as everyone 

present here knows at xx home, this is just not the case. 

RS Asked Manager to explain to him why her staff were ringing him at home 

and telling him how bad the food is and could he bring food in for his mother. 

Mr. Q said the food on offer is institutional food is it not? Nothing like xxxx are 

portraying in their advertising. 

SL (Resident in home) said we just do not know what we are eating half the 

ǘƛƳŜ ŀǎ ƛǘΩǎ ǎƻ ōƭŀƴŘ ŀƴŘ ŀǿŦǳƭΣ Ƙƛǎ ŘŀǳƎƘǘŜǊ ŀƎǊŜŜŘΦ 

Mrs. S said it was not the meals so much more the way it had been cooked, the 

meat is so grisly that residents are unable to eat it. 

RS asked the Manager what the food allowance was per resident per day. 

LS said it was quite high. 

RS said that prisoners had Two pounds and twelve pence per day and he 

ƘƻǇŜŘ Ƙƛǎ ƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ ŜȄŎŜŜŘŜŘ ǘƘƛǎϦ 

MR said she was shocked to see how food ran out and RS said that he had 

often had to purchase, porridge, soup and ham for his mother as they had 

none here. 

MR said she visited many care homes in the area and the food here and the 

standards are by far the worst she had witnessed. 

Mr. Q said that it was obvious that this home was being run on a shoestring 

budget which the manager denied. 

Mrs. S. Said to the Manager even your own care staff say that your kitchen 

staff are like the mafia you appear to let them run the kitchen with no 

oversight from yourself and sadly for the residents it shows. 

The manager replied this was not true. 

Mr. Q asked where all this fresh food comes from? And RS said it came in from 

a catering company called 3663. 

MQ replied that this was hardly local fresh produce. 

S daughter asked why there was still not any fruit provided for residents and 

AH replied that this was brought up at every meeting but was down to kitchen 

staff to provide, he had asked kitchen staff why there was never any fruit in 

the fruit bowels provided and they said because one resident would eat it all. 
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RS said a notice for relatives had not been updated it stated all written 

problems were to be addressed to area manager, KS, he asked if the sign could 

be updated as HB had now taken over from KS although he had written to her 

she did not reply. 

LS Manager said HB would be visiting the home on May 21st and he could 

arrange to see her then. 

RS asked Manager if relatives and residents meeting minutes were shown to 

area managers and LS Manager said they were not, to which RS said it was 

about time they were so that those above her could see for themselves exactly 

what was going on here. 

LS Manager said she could send a copy to PC, to which RS said whose he? 

[{ ǎŀƛŘ ƘŜ ǿƻǊƪŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ȄȄȄȄ ƘƻǘŜƭǎ ŘŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘΦ 

!I ŀǎƪŜŘ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ ƛŦ ǘƘŜȅ ŎƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ŀ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜΩǎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ- to which LS said 

she saw no problem with this. 

Several relatives felt six monthly meetings were too far apart and that perhaps 

ŀƴ ƛƴǘŜǊƛƳ ƳŜŜǘƛƴƎ ŎƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ƘŜƭŘ ƛƴ ǘƘǊŜŜ ƳƻƴǘƘǎΩ ǘƛƳŜΣ !ǳƎǳǎǘ нллф ǘƻ ǿƘƛŎƘ 

LS agreed to. 

 

 

 

 

Incident Report ( NMC) 2013 

The NMC strike.... LOCAL NEWPAPER REPORT DATED OCTOBER 2013 

ά! bǳǊǎŜ ŦǊƻƳ ¢ƘŜ wŜŘ IƻǳǎŜΣ ŀǇǇŜŀǊŜŘ ōŜŦƻǊŜ ǘƘŜ ba/ ŀŦǘŜǊ ǘŜƭƭƛƴƎ ŀ ŎŀǊŜ 

assistant to give a sedative drug to a resident not prescribed it. 

Nurse Mwaka Nachilongo accepted the allegations. She did not call a GP or 

record the medication. There had been earlier incidents of concern about this 

nurse going back as far as 2004 on medication issues and in 2006 when she 

ŦŀƛƭŜŘ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ŎŀǊŜΦέ 

 

 

See my full report on the Red House at www.compassionincare.com Tales 

of the Un-Inspected (61) 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.compassionincare.com/
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                                                 BUPA HOME 49 

 

                                SEABROOK MANOR        LONDON 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Coroners Report)  April 2014 

 

The Coroner sent a regulation 28 report to Bupa. This regulation is used 

when a risk of further deaths has been identified during an inquest. This 

happened in the case of Roy Godfrey, who suffered an unwitnessed fall at 

Seabrook Manor on the 23
rd
 of July 2013.  Paramedics attended and spent 

an hour with Mr Godfrey and the decision was made that he did not need 

to go to hospital as the care home agreed to take responsibility for Mr 

Godfreys care. Paramedics advised the staff to observe the patient 

overnight as external head injuries were apparent and if any signs of 

increased swelling, nausea or deterioration were observed an ambulance 

should be called. 

 

The correct checks were not carried out by Seabrook Manor that night, no 

neurological checks were done at all. The next morning Mr Godfrey awoke 

at the usual time of 4.30am. He was taken to a lounge and a few hours later 

was found unresponsive. 

He was taken to hospital where a CT scan showed subdural haematoma 

and a midline shift of the brain herniation. The Brain injury was deemed 

fatal. Mr Godfrey Died on July 24
th
. Mr Godfrey was on long term 

warfarin and elderly patients on warfarin are at increased risk of bleeding 

if a head injury is sustained. 

At the inquest the deputy manager from Seabrook Manor, said: ñ That the 

staff on duty should have been aware of such a risk. The care staff should 

have carried out the instructions of the paramedics.ò 

 

The Coroner said: ñ I have heard a great deal of evidence from the London 

Ambulance Service in relation to a thorough investigation they had 

conducted into this case. They had the assistance of an independent clinical 

advisor and had identified all the relevant issues. They had taken all the 

action required to address those issues. Bupa care homes however had 

provided a one page document headed , Summery of Investigation. This 

was the only investigation document. In my opinion action should be taken 

to prevent future deaths and I believe your organisation has the power to 

take such actionò 
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                                             BUPA HOME 50 

 

                        BEREWEEKE COURT         HAMPSHIRE 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report )  August 2013, 

Major concerns about the care of residents at Bereweeke Court were first 

raised in March 2013. The  CQC inspect the home and tell Bupa to rectify 

the issues. 

But since then little has been done to improve care. The residents tell 

inspectors there are not enough staff. 

Follow up inspections in April, May and June found continued failure to 

improve the poor standards or increase staffing numbers. 

Bupa said we have made significant improvements and we appreciate the 

support of our partners. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 51 

 

                                 SUTTON LODGE          SURRY 

 

Incident Report( Source Media Report ) 2014 

Care Assistant Susannah Carr 43, worked at Sutton Lodge for 11 years. 

She suffered from mild schizophrenia but had not taken her medication 

when the offence was committed. She took an elderly dementia resident 

who was wandering around the home to the residentôs bedroom and tied 

her to a chair. Fortunately Carr went on her tea break and told another 

staff member what she had done and was reported. 

She was prosecuted under the Mental Capacity Act. 
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                                                     BUPA HOME 52 

 

                            ST CHRISTOPHORS         HERTFORDSHIRE 

 

 

Incident Report ( Legal Web-site ) 

Bupa nurse Margaret Fenty slapped an elderly resident and called him a 

dirty bugger when she caught him molesting another vulnerable resident. 

The frail victim of the sexual assault was crying out in distress but Fenty 

just moved her out of the way and failed to report the incident. 

 

 

 

                                               BUPA HOME 53 

 

                                 BRANDON PARK       SUFFOLK 

 

Incident report ( Source Media Report) 2013 

A Coronerôs inquest into the death of 97 year old Phyllis Mulcahy, who died 

suddenly in December 2012 at Brandon Park care home, revealed she had 

been administered the antibiotic, Trimethroprim in spite of a red allergy 

sticker on her notes. Shortly after being administered the drug she became 

unwell with laboured breathing and paramedics attended. She was 

declared dead at the scene. 

A post mortem concluded she died from old age and heart disease. Bupa 

said: ñThey had learnt important lessons.ò 

 

 

 

 

                                             BUPA HOME 54 

 

               HATFIELD PEVERAL LODGE             HATFIELD 

 

Incident report ( Source Media Report ) April 2014. 

Staff Whistle-blowers from Peveral Lodge contact the CQC. They say that 

the staffing levels at the home are terrible and they are very unhappy. 

Bupa say they are reviewing the staffing levels as a result of the inspection. 

Were Bupa aware of the staffs concerns prior to CQC becoming involved? 

If so why did they ignore the staffs concerns? 
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                                              BUPA HOME 55 

 

                             COLLINGWOOD           LONDON 

 

Incident Report ( Source NMC v Olugbile )  March 2014 

Nurse Osironke Olugbile has been struck off by the NMC for removing 

residents call bells.  Olugbile also left people fully dressed all night to save 

her time dressing them the next day. She also dragged an elderly resident to 

bed by her hair. 

The Whistle-blower who finally reported Olugbile said; ñThey hesitated to 

report her because she had told them that she would have them cursed by a 

witch doctor back home in Africa.ò 

Olugbile had worked at Collingwood from March 2006 to February 2011. 

She registered as a nurse in 2005. 

 

 

                                                 BUPA HOME 56 

 

                          ACACIA LODGE         IRTHINGBOROUGH 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report 2012 ) 

Bupa nurse Paula Fuller, has been struck off by the NMC. Fuller whilst 

working at Acacia Lodge left a dying resident in disgusting state. When 

Fuller was asked  by a care worker to help the resident, she shut his room 

door and left him dying in great distress. Fuller later wrote false entries in 

the manôs care notes. During the NMC hearing she said: ñShe had 

panicked as she had just started work at Acacia Lodge and had not nursed 

for 2 years.ò Why was she employed if she did not have the relevant skills? 

 

 

  

                                                BUPA HOME 57 

 

                                  OAK LODGE            HAMPSHIRE 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  September 2011 

A Relative said: ñThey had raised concerns about Oak Lodge earlier in the 

year.ò Two  subsequent CQC inspections found serious shortfalls in the 

care of residents. 
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                                                BUPA HOME 58 

 

                                    ASHBY COURT         ASHBY 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) 2009 

Phyllis Greasley, a 99 year old resident at Ashby Court was dropped when 

a care worker scooped her up instead of finding a colleague to help her use 

the hoist. Mrs Greasley suffered a broken hip and died five days later when 

broken bone caused a fatal blockage. 

The care worker Bini Abraham admitted falsifying an accident report. 

Mrs Greasley who must have been in dreadful pain, was not checked for 

injuries and her broken hip was only discovered the next day when she 

became unwell. 

 

 

 

                                            BUPA HOME 59 

 

                      HEATHBROOK              BIRMINGHAM 

 

Source An FOI request made by Compassion In Care revealed three years 

of the same general concerns being raised by a succession of relatives and 

Whistle-blowers, about poor care at Heathbrook. These concerns were 

raised with the CQC and the Safeguarding Adults Board. The information 

revealed that some of the Whistle-blowers involved were disciplined by 

Bupa for insubordination. In one instance 45 allegations are made against a 

staff member who is suspended but later reinstated. 

 

The main theme of the concerns relate to staffing levels, which are resulting 

in the poor care of residents. These concerns go on for two years without 

any apparent action being taken. However no sooner has the home been 

judged compliant than the same theme starts again. Numerous residents 

have needlessly suffered, and further Whistle-blowers are afraid to give 

their names. 

 

Please see the appendix for a full copy of the FOI document. 
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                                              BUPA HOME 60 

 

                               EASTBANK             GLASGOW 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Health and Safety ) December 2003. 

Health and Safety issue Bupa with an improvement notice for failing to 

provide staff at Eastbank with training on moving, handling and for failing 

to provide lifting equipment which has placed staff and residents at risk of 

harm. 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report )  January 2007. 

An 87 year old resident at Eastbank care home, Margaret Carroll, fell and 

broke her hip. Mrs Carroll had dementia and was unable to ask for help. 

Staff noted that she was limping but no action was taken. Mrs Carrollôs 

son, Jim who is a paramedic visited her and called an ambulance. 

Her son said: ñHe had visited his mother 24 hours earlier. When he 

returned he found her in agony and she had cracks in her glassesô and a 

badly bruised elbow.ò He called an ambulance and his mother was taken to 

hospital where it was discovered she had broken her hip. She was taken to 

theatre but died a few hours later. Doctors blamed the 12 hour delay.  Bupa 

said; ñThey were confident she had received a high quality of careò. 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) August 2013. 

78 Year old Margaret Hall was terminally ill and spent the last hours of her 

life left sitting in a crowded lounge in front of a TV screaming in agony. She 

had not received any of her pain relief for four days. The family had made 

a series of complaints since she went into Eastbank. Six months previously 

her daughter found her shivering in a bath of cold water as staff had 

forgotten about her. 

Her daughter had complained previously about her not having the 

Morphine she needed. She said: 

ñI found her in a packed lounge right in front of the TV, I could instantly 

see the deathly colour of her. She was holding my hand tightly, roaring with 

pain and clutching her chest.ò    

 

A joint investigation into Bupa Care Homes In Scotland, by Compassion in 

Care and Private Eye Magazine in 2013 issue No 1352 ( Which can be 

found in the appendix) 

The investigation found of the 30 Bupa homes, there were serious failings at 

ten and nine gave some cause for concern. Only ten were rated consistently 

good and only one small home Balcarres in Dundee stood out as 

consistently excellent. 
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Since 2009 Eastbank has never been rated better than weak or adequate. 

The investigation has found that homes rated weak or adequate can 

actually mean misery and neglect for residents. 

 

    

 

                                             BUPA HOME 61 

 

                                HILL VIEW           CLYDEBANK 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) June 2010 

Hill View has been criticised by the regulator who partially upheld two of 

three complaints made by the family of 82 year old Ann Kinloch, who died 

weeks after breaking her hip at the home. 

Her family received a bill for her care on the day of her funeral. They 

dispute the amount they have been charged. 

Bupa said: ñThe complaints investigated by the Commission found there 

was no question about the quality of the care she receivedò 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) 2011 

The NMC have suspended nurse Susan Thompson for giving alcohol to five 

residents at Hill View, including recovering alcoholics, to keep them quite. 

She also told a resident that he should be ashamed of himself for wetting 

the bed. 

 

 

 

                                               BUPA HOME 62 

 

                              HIGHGATE              LANARKSHIRE 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Health and Safety ) 2008 

Bupa were fined Ã57.000 for failures after Mrs Elizabeth Stevenson 88 was 

dropped, sustained a broken neck and died.  A care worker who had 

recently started work at the home was unaware that two staff were needed 

to move a resident. 
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                                             BUPA HOME 63 

 

                         NEWCARRON COURT         FALKIRK 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) 2008 

The NMC strike of nurse David McDade for restraining a resident by 

twisting his arm behind his back and failing to record the incident. McDade 

said: ñ if I wrote everything down I would be writing forever. ñ He also 

threatened to catheterise an elderly women who was going to the toilet 

frequently. 

Bupa sacked him and reported him to NMC. But whilst waiting for the case 

to be heard, he obtained a reference from his last employer, Bupa and went 

to work in another care home where he abused another pensioner. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                BUPA HOME 64 

 

                          DARNLEY COURT            GLASGOW 

 

 

Incident Report ( Source Media Report ) July 2014 

Darnley Court and Pentland Hill are among 14 care homes named as the 

worst in Scotland. People were not washed or fed. There were mistakes 

with medication and fears over staffing levels. 

The inspection reports for all these homes feature years of people suffering 

for the want of basic care. 
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                                                BUPA HOME 65 

 

                                     AILSA CRAIG           CESSNOCK 

 

 

Incident Report  ( Source Media Report ) 2007. 

John Collins 78 lost almost four stone in 11 weeks at Ailsa Craig. He was 

admitted to hospital badly dehydrated, had a mouth full of ulcers, two inch 

long toenails and his teeth were black. He was wearing a filthy old tea shirt, 

socks, pants and someone elseôs dressing gown. 

He had pneumonia and died three days later. His wife Catherine said: ñ She 

would find him soaked in urine, being fed solid food he could not eat and 

should have been given a soft diet. His teeth were not cleaned and 

medication was found under his tongue as he was not given enough fluid to 

swallow it.ò 

The regulator upheld the familyôs complaints and told the home to 

improve, yet the next inspection found no improvements had been made. 

 

 

 

Incident Report (Source Media Report) 2008 

A media investigation found MRSA on the walls at Ailsa Craig. 

An outbreak of vomiting and diarrhoea occurred during the investigation. 

Dirty incontinence pads were stuffed down a toilet and strewn on floors 

Staffing numbers were so low staff could not cope. 

A whistle-blower contacted the newspaper in desperation saying: 

ñ Residents were paying huge sums of money and were kept like cattle.ò 

She added; ñResidents had no one else to turn to. I canôt believe what is 

going on at Ailsa Craigò 

Bupa denied there were any issues. 
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                                                BUPA HOME 66 

 

                               PENTLAND HILL   EDINBURGH 

 

In my investigation into what was known about Pentland Hill, I have taken 

the facts from regulators reports, concerns, media reports and witness 

testimony.  

This report is the result.  

 

AUGUST 2007. 

Things were so bad in this care home that 19 relatives wrote a joint letter 

outlining their concerns to both BUPA and the regulator. They said many 

issues had been raised before and they no longer had confidence in the 

management. 

The Issues raised were, 

Alarming staff turnover, 

Lack of qualified staff, 

Poor staffing levels, 

The cleanliness of the home and the residents, 

Torn sheets, 

Improper supervision at mealtimes, 

Poor food and a generally demoralizing atmosphere. 

BUPA promised to implement an action plan as a result of these complaints. 

 

When a relative raises a concern to the authorities it is usually as a last resort 

and I have always seen this as an early warning that should be acted on. 

When 19 relatives raise such serious concerns as a group it says things are so 

bad in this home people have already suffered harm and are at serious risk of 

further harm. 

 

INSPECTION REPORT MARCH 2009. 

1 Year 7 Months later. 

 

Pages 6-7-8 

States that there were issues with staff not reporting matters of concern. 

There have been issues with poor quality food. 
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The regulator sent the home 40 questionnaires to give to relatives, only three 

were returned.  

 

Pages 10-12 

It is noted that there were seven people in a lounge but only three were 

given a drink and one of those three needed help to drink and was not given 

help. 

¢ƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ŀƴ ƛƴǘƻƭŜǊŀƴŎŜ ƻŦ ŀ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ōŜƘŀǾƛƻǳǊΦ  

  

Page 15. 

¢ƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǎǘŀŦŦƛƴƎ ƭŜǾŜƭǎ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ƳŜŜǘƛƴƎ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ƴŜŜŘǎΦ 

The home is graded as good. 

 

INSPECTION REPORT MAY 2011 

2 Years 2 months later. 

 

Pages 19-20-21 

Evidence from residents that staffing levels are too low. 

Some people did not know how to raise concerns. 

Three out of ten relatives thought there were not enough staff. 

Three thought the home was not clean. 

Four had issues about the food. 

A person says the home needs a lot more trained staff and cleaners. 

Another says the staff are constantly changing. 

Another person said staff came on duty with hangovers. 

Another person felt concerns were not acted on and there were issues with 

falls. 

 

Pages 30-31 

Evidence of low fluid and food intake. 

Pressure mattresses were not set correctly. 

Lack of investigation into unexplained bruising. 
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34-35 

The paperwork is checked and the judgment made there are sufficient staff. 

There are serious issues with medication. Staff had altered the prescribed 

doses of medication. 

Medication was unaccounted for. 

Relatives say people are left alone in the lounge areas but inspectors do not 

witness this. 

 

42. 

A relative says staff are all sitting together writing up care plans. 

Graded adequate in two areas and good in two. 

 

Page 49. 

The inspection history shows good grades are not maintained and drastic 

swings between good to weak are common. However the issues behind this 

are not addressed.  

 

INSPECTION REPORT SEPTEMBER 2011 

16 weeks later 

 

Page 3. 

Now the home is back to adequate and weak ratings. 

¢ƘŜ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘΩǎ ŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎȅ ǊŀǘƛƴƎǎ ǘƘŀǘ ƛƴǎǇŜŎǘƻǊǎ ŎƘŜŎƪŜŘ мс ǿŜŜƪǎ ŀƎƻ ŀƴŘ 

relied on to discount the concerns of relatives are now found to be 

inaccurate. 

 

Page 19. 

States a relative raised a concern with the inspector. 

 

Pages 23 and 26 

A resident in bed lying on their side with their face toward the pillow was 

been fed by a staff member. Inspectors judge this to affect enjoyment of the 

meal but I would have though this could put someone at risk of choking. 

People were left at tables long after the meal was over. 

Pressure relieving mattresses were not set correctly. 
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There had been an incident that was not recorded correctly. 

Charts were being filled in advance. 

People were not given tea all morning. 

 

Pages 30, 31 and 34. 

Medication is still a mess.  Staff are altering prescription doses. 

Medication is unaccounted for. 

On one unit there were two relatives, two students and the usual number of 

staff struggling to serve lunch. 

Inspectors ask staff, residents and relatives who all said there were not 

enough staff to care for people. 

The inspectors decide to check the content of the dependency level check 

used by the company and find that dependency levels have been 

underestimated. 

Therefore the QUEST documents for every home owned by this company are 

open to or complicit in the abuse. If staffing levels are set too low people will 

suffer. If this situation occurs out of ignorance it is neglect but if it is 

premeditated than it is deliberate abuse. 

 

The home is not clean, dirty sinks, floors, windowsills and tables.  

 

INSPECTION REPORT FEBRUARY 2012 

5 Months later. 

 

Pages 26, 28, 29 

 

Pressure relief mattresses not set correctly. 

One person was sat in a wheelchair for over two hours, a member of staff 

could not explain why. 

Incidents were not recorded or action taken. 

Medication was not given as prescribed. 

People are at risk of pressure sores from sitting in wheelchairs. 
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Pages 32, 34 and 39. 

Inspectors say the home is now staffed according to dependency levels and 

the Rota changed to reflect this. 

Missing property not recorded. 

Afternoon charts filled in during the morning. 

A resident says they wait a long time for their buzzer to be answered and 

inspectors ring the buzzer and it took staff ten minutes to answer because 

they were busy, yet staffing levels are now judged sufficient. 

Staff have been trained but it was not put into practice. 

Concerns were not acted on. 

 

INSPECTION REPORT JUNE 2012 

16 Weeks later. 

 

Pages 22, 24 and 25. 

60 surveys sent out only 8 returned, residents with dementia the main client 

ƎǊƻǳǇ ŦƻǊ ǘƘƛǎ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅ ƘŀǾŜ ƴƻǘ ōŜŜƴ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 

participation strategy. 

There was little for people to do and staff were busy attending to people. 

Some people have a brush or comb and toiletry bags which were dirty. 

There were not enough tables and chairs for people. 

People were sat in the dining room up to half hour before lunch. 

Some people were sat at the dining table from breakfast until after lunch 

before being moved. 

 

Pages 28, 30 and 36 

Says the issues remain the same from last inspection. 

¢ƘŜ vǳŜǎǘ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘ ŘƛŘ ƴƻǘ ŀŎŎǳǊŀǘŜƭȅ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜΩǎ ƴŜŜŘǎΦ 

One resident was calling out constantly, staff reassured but did not listen to 

what they were saying. 

Staff did not see one resident fall asleep in their soup. 

People were not given the assistance they needed to eat. 

Call bells in rooms were disconnected. 

These issues are not considered to be the result of staffing levels being too 

low and yet they are all evidence of just that. 
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INSPECTION REPORT NOVEMBER 2012 

5 Months later. 

 

Page 4. 

The home still barely scraping an adequate rating. 

The issues are the same as at last inspection. 

 

 

WHAT HAS HAPPENED SINCE  

 

The home was closed to admissions after widespread concerns and the police 

are into investigating the deaths of four residents. As a result of the press 

coverage further appalling information came to light. The regulator quickly 

down- graded the home. 

 

 

INSPECTION REPORT JULY 2013 

8 Months later. 

 

Throughout the report the tragic consequences of ignoring failings year after 

year. 

The home is now rated unsatisfactory weak. Not for the first time. 

Now the home is threatened with enforcement action and then the company 

will promise yet another improvement action plan and the whole sorry saga 

will start all over again. 

 

Pages 15, 16. 

List the concerns of relatives and residents. 

Of the 60 questionnaires that were alleged to have been sent out, only 8 

were returned and for first time inspectors check if people received them and 

find they had not been forwarded by the home which explains the low 

returns for years previously. 

The home is dirty and smells. 
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On a hot sunny day people were unable to go outside. 

People were left in wheelchairs all day. 

Immobile people sat distressed in a very noisy lounge. 

People did not get help to eat and drink. One person was seen trying to eat 

soup with a knife. 

Charts and care plans were lacking details. 

Medication is still a mess. 

The smells, was excessively hot, one toilet had a leaking soil pipe which had 

tape wound round it as a repair. 

Call bells could not be heard when used. 

Staff turnover was high. 

People said they were afraid to complain  

Accidents and deaths had not been reported. 

There is clear evidence that staffing levels are too low. 

 

 

PRESS COVERAGE. 

20th November 2013... 

A nurse who worked at Pentland Hill for more than two years tells STV she 

ǎŀƛŘΤ ά¢Ƙŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǎǘŀŦŦƛƴƎ ƭŜǾŜƭǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ Ǉǳǘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ŀǘ ǊƛǎƪΤ she left the 

home because she could not work in the conditions. Despite previous 

inspections saying the home was adequate. The nurse said she never 

believed the staffing levels were safe. We were told the staff numbers were 

correct, it was impossible, there is absolutely no way that amount of staff 

could look after all those residents. 

bƻǘƘƛƴƎ ŜǾŜǊ ŎƘŀƴƎŜŘ ǎƘŜ ǎŀƛŘΦέ 

BUPA has promised a robust action plan. 

 

 

 

Compassion in Care and Private Eye magazine carried out a joint 

investigation into BUPA homes across Scotland and found all but one that did 

not have similar problems.   
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Among the emails, 

άaȅ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ ŘƛŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƘƻƳŜ ƛƴ нллф ŀƴŘ ǿŜ ŎƻƳǇƭŀƛƴŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƻƭŘ 

recommendations had been made. Too late for our father but we hoped 

ƻǘƘŜǊǎ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ǎǇŀǊŜŘέ 

 

άL ŀƳ ƻne of three whistle-blowers who reported malpractice and abuse. We 

were set up and sacked; we lost our identity and nearly our home... Whistle-

blowers must be prepared to lose everything for doing what they thought 

ǿŀǎ ǊƛƎƘǘΦέ 

 

ά!ƴƻǘƘŜǊ Ƴŀƴ ǘƘƻǳƎƘǘ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊe inspectorate intervened to save his mother in 

time but was unaware that repeated concerns were being raised about the 

ƘƻƳŜ ƎƻƛƴƎ ōŀŎƪ ǘƻ нллтΦέ 

 

One lady worked at the home and her mother was a resident, her statement 

ŀōƻǳǘ ƘŜǊ ƳƻǘƘŜǊΩǎ ǘǊŜŀǘƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ǎƘƻŎking as it tells us of a company where 

criminal activity is routinely concealed as a matter of policy.    

 

,, On the morning of October 22nd 2009 I received a call from my place of 

work, Pentland Hill Care Home; the acting manager told me she had bad 

news, my mother Agnes Nisbit who was a resident in the home had been 

assaulted the evening before by an employee at the home, a care worker. 

Little did I know how this was going to change my life. I contacted my sister 

and we went down to the home to see our mum and find out what had 

happened. 

When we saw our mum we were shocked, she looked battered. She had 

several obvious injuries, bruising to both her eyes, a swollen and obviously 

fractured nose, bruising to both temples, a cut inside her upper lip caused by 

her own lower tooth, bruises on her right arm and a bruised and swollen 

little finger on her right hand. 

The care worker (Assailant) had been examined at the time and was found to 

have no sign of injury or bruising. 

 

We were in shock. Staff members were visibly upset. Then we started to 

think why was mum left all night on her own in such a state? 
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Why were the police not called at the time? 

Why were we not contacted? 

It had happened at about 10pm the evening before. Things did not add up 

and were about to get worse. 

  

I was called over to the office, there was a call for me. My brother 

accompanied me over to the office where there was a BUPA support 

manager waiting. She told me that the regional manager was on the phone 

and she put the phone on loudspeaker so we all could hear the conversation. 

 

The R.M, who had been contacted after the assault by the nurse in charge of 

the home that evening and said how sorry she was but that she ,, had no idea 

that an assault had taken place,, and that she was under the impression that 

my mum had a bleeding nose. It was an angry discussion but she insisted that 

she did not know about the assault. It was a well-known fact that at that 

time that a senior manager had to be contacted for permission to call out the 

police. 

 

I believe the night nurse involved had previously called out the police 

without permission believing there was an intruder in the building and she 

was reprimanded by senior management for not following BUPA guidelines. I 

myself questioned a manager about this and was told ,,I think all care homes 

do this,, 

 

The next few months and years have been a nightmare. We contacted 

Alzheimer Scotland, the Care Commission etc., lots of interest but we did not 

seem to be getting our voices heard. We decided to ask the then named Care 

Commission for copies of their investigation of the incident. 

They had carried out an investigation at the time and later my brother had 

contacted them and asked them to look at the case again as we as a family 

were not satisfied that they had done a proper investigation. 

Nothing much came of any of these investigations. Much to my surprise they 

never interviewed myself or my sister about what we had experienced. They 

only spoke to BUPA people. 
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We waited several months but finally received some of the documentation. 

Much of it was not sent to us to protect the person interviewed. However 

what was clear was that the regional Manager knew there was an alleged 

assault by a care worker and she knew the other staff on duty did not believe 

this care workers story that my wheelchair bound mother had attacked her. 

The Regional Manager also admitted to the care Commission that she did not 

know why the staff had not believed this care worker. 

 

A strange reaction indeed from a regional manager , she was obviously not 

interested. She told the nurse to send the accused worker over  to another 

unit and a worker from there would take her place. She had sent a text to the 

acting home manager, who had not answered her phone on the evening of 

the assault, telling her there had been an incident at the home and could she 

deal with it in the morning. 

 

We are not sure when management knew it was our mother who had been 

assaulted. With me working in the home and my mum getting daily visits 

ŦǊƻƳ Ƴȅ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŜȅ ŎƻǳƭŘƴΩǘ ŎƻǾŜr up what had happened. 

We strongly believe that their inaction on the evening of October 21st 2009, 

had an effect on the police investigation. The care worker went missing for a 

few days and of course my mum was cleaned up, the room was cleaned up 

and mums bloodied nightie that was to be kept as evidence went missing,, 

never to surface again. We had been told the floor was blood stained, and 

the paper towels that the care worker had used to stem the flow of blood 

from my mums nose and mouth, all gone. My mum died  on the 19th of April 

2010 before the trial took place. A trial that would destroy all our faith in the 

fairness and justice we expected from a Scottish court. 

Lǘ ǎŜŜƳǎ ǎǳŦŦŜǊƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ !ƭȊƘŜƛƳŜǊΩǎ ƳŀŘŜ Ƴȅ ƳǳƳǎ ŎƭŜŀǊ ŀƴŘ ŦǊŜǉǳŜƴǘƭȅ 

repeated accusations a subject for doubt. 

We sat through three days of torture, it finished with the jury taking ten 

minutes to find the Care worker not guilty. We were so angry with the way 

the prosecution handled the case and lodged a complaint and subsequently 

had a meeting with the District procurator fiscal at the crown office. 

We were left even more angry and frustrated and have since lodged a further 

complaint  to the lord Advocate of Scotland, we still await a reply. 
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Our mum was failed by everyone, Bupa, The Care Inspectorate, the police 

and the justice of the land. My dear fathers wish is that he lives to see some 

sort of justice, not only for our mum but for all the other elderly people in 

care homes, especially those with dementia, where is there protection? My 

mother got none. 

 

As a care worker in the home Mrs. Taylor has seen residents left for hours 

after soiling themselves. 

The home was chronically understaffed and the company put profit before 

care. 

The home was an accident waiting to happen and it has happened. 
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                                              SUMMERY 

 

The list could go on forever but I have Just given examples of the kind of 

issues that are raised again and again. I have used an editorial about Bupa 

from the Express newspaper written in August 2000 as I feel it says it all. 

 

 

 

 

      BUPA MUST ACT ON CLAIMS OVER RESIDENTIAL HOMES. 

 

We reveal today a horrifying story of neglect and abuse at the privately run 

Isard house Residential home. Such stories are always deeply shocking. But 

what makes this one especially so are the allegations about the attitude of 

the owner Bupa, the largest private health and geriatric care company in 

the country. It failed to take proper note of these claims, or act to make 

sure that the culprits were brought to book. Even worse, it re-employed an 

alleged abuser in another home, Bupa contests these allegations. Most 

residential care for the elderly is provided in private homes. The greater 

part of it is, at the very least, adequate/some much better than that. It used 

to be that the old council run homes were more often than not a problem. 

But now there is an unpleasant undertone running through too many 

private homes, which make all sorts of promises about the standard of care 

they offer but which, when confronted with evidence to the contrary, 

simply do not seem to listen to employees on the ground. Bupa makes 

precisely these promises. Indeed, so fine is its reputation that one of its 

directors has advised the government. Yet our investigation reveals a 

profoundly worrying culture which runs throughout the company, from 

bottom to top. Bupa must act swiftly to ensure that its employeeôs 

procedures are modules of good practice. If it continues to behave with 

such apparent contempt towards its whistle-blowers, the company will find 

itself at the centre of a national scandal which could, deservedly, destroy its 

entire market. 
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